UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-O/A

			(AMENDMENT NO. 1)	
	QUARTERLY R	EPORT PURSUANT TO SECT	ION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHA	NGE ACT OF 1934
	For the quarterly	y period ended March 31, 2012		
			OR	
	TRANSITION R	EPORT PURSUANT TO SECT	ION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHA	NGE ACT OF 1934
			001-34258 (Commission file number)	
			ORD INTERNATIONAL L e of registrant as specified in its charter)	LTD.
	(State or oth	tzerland er jurisdiction of n or organization)	1	98-0606750 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
4-6 Ru		noloni, 1204 Geneva, Switzerlandipal executive offices)	nd	Not Applicable (Zip Code)
		Registrant's telepho	one number, including area code: 41.22.816.1500	
			rts required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of vas required to file such reports), and (2) has been	
Yes □ No ☑				
	posted pursuant to Ru		onically and posted on its corporate Web site, if g the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter p	
Yes □ No ☑				
			ted filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated or reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchan	
Large accelerat	ed filer 🗹	Accelerated filer □	Non-accelerated filer ☐ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company	Smaller reporting company □ y)
Indicate by che	ck mark whether the re	egistrant is a shell company (as	defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).	
Yes □ No ☑				
Indicate the nu	mber of shares outstar	nding of each of the issuer's cla	sses of common stock, as of the latest practicable	date:
As of Decembe	r 10, 2012, there were	764,754,521 shares of Weather	ford registered shares, 1.16 Swiss francs par value	per share, outstanding.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

Weatherford International Ltd. (the "Company") is filing this Amendment No. 1 to its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, which was originally filed on May 8, 2012 (the "Form 10-Q"), to restate certain financial information for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 due to errors in the Company's accounting for income taxes and a construction contract in Iraq. Details on the restatement and its impact on the Company's controls and procedures are included in Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements, under "Note 2 - Restatement of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements" and Part I, Item 4. Controls and Procedures, respectively.

For convenience of the reader, this Amendment No. 1 sets forth the Form 10-Q in its entirety, as modified and superseded where necessary to reflect the restatement. The following items have been amended principally as a result of and to reflect the restatement:

- Part I Item 1. Financial Statements; (See Notes 2, 10, 13 and 16)
- Part I Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;
- Part I Item 4. Controls and Procedures; and
- Part II Item 6. Exhibits

This Amendment No. 1 amends only the portions of the Form 10-Q listed in the sections noted above. This Amendment No. 1 does not reflect events occurring after the original filing date of the Form 10-Q other than those associated with the restatement.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	2
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	30
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK	42
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES	45
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION	
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	46
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS	46
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY IN SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS	46
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS	46
SIGNATURES	47
EX-31.1	48
EX-31.2	
EX-32.1	
EX-32.2	
EX-101 INSTANCE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 SCHEMA DOCUMENT	
EX-101 CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
EX-101 DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	

1

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (In millions, except par value)

	M	March 31, 2012		ember 31, 2011
	(Unaudited) (Restated)		(Restated)	
Current Assets:				
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$	339	\$	371
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts of \$92 and \$91		3,358		3,233
Inventories		3,301		3,158
Current Deferred Tax Assets		273		274
Other Current Assets		816		695
Total Current Assets		8,087		7,731
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation of \$5,312 and \$5,023		7,591		7,287
Goodwill		4,446		4,423
Other Intangible Assets, Net of Accumulated Amortization of \$574 and \$546		706		711
Equity Investments		634		616
Other Non-current Assets		291		283
Total Assets	\$	21,755	\$	21,051
Current Liabilities:				
Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt	\$	1,902	\$	1,320
Accounts Payable	Ψ	1,684	Ψ	1,571
Other Current Liabilities		1,314		1,392
Total Current Liabilities		4,900		4,283
		1,		-,
Long-term Debt		5,989		6,286
Other Non-current Liabilities		1,141		1,137
Total Liabilities		12,030		11,706
Shareholders' Equity: Shares, CHF 1.16 Par Value: Authorized 1,144, Conditionally Authorized 373, Issued 770 at March 31, 2012 and Authorized				
1,139 Shares, Conditionally Authorized 378 Shares, Issued 765 Shares at December 31, 2011		775		769
Capital in Excess of Par Value		4.712		4.675
Treasury Shares, at Cost		(302)		(334)
Retained Earnings		4,257		4,134
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income		262		80
Weatherford Shareholders' Equity	_	9,704		9,324
Noncontrolling Interests		9,704		9,324
Total Shareholders' Equity		9,725		9,345
• •	¢		ф	
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity	\$	21,755	\$	21,051

 $The \ accompanying \ notes \ are \ an \ integral \ part \ of \ these \ condensed \ consolidated \ financial \ statements.$

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended March 31.

	Ended	March 31,
	2012	2011
	(Restated)	(Restated)
Revenues:		
Products	\$ 1,412	
Services	2,179	1,792
	3,591	2,856
Costs and Expenses:		
Cost of Products	1,053	792
Cost of Services	1,647	1,341
Research and Development	62	60
Selling, General and Administrative Attributable to Segments	372	384
Corporate, General and Administrative	87	70
	3,221	2,647
Operating Income	370	209
Other Expense:		
Interest Expense, Net	(112	(112)
Other, Net	(18	(19)
Income Before Income Taxes	240	78
Provision for Income Taxes	(110) (46)
Net Income	130	32
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests	(7) (2)
Net Income Attributable to Weatherford	\$ 123	\$ 30
Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford:		
Basic	\$ 0.16	\$ 0.04
Diluted	\$ 0.16	\$ 0.04
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:		
Basic	760	747
Diluted	766	758

 $The \ accompanying \ notes \ are \ an \ integral \ part \ of \ these \ condensed \ consolidated \ financial \ statements.$

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED) (In millions)

Three Months Ended March 31. 2012 2011 (Restated) (Restated) Net Income 130 \$ Other Comprehensive Income: Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 181 181 Amortization of Pension Components 182 Other Comprehensive Income 182 214 Comprehensive Income 312 Comprehensive Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests (2) (7) Comprehensive Income Attributable to Weatherford 305 212

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED) (In millions)

Three Months Ended March 31.

	Ended M	March 31,
	2012	2011
	(Restated)	(Restated)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:		
Net Income	\$ 130	\$ 32
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:		
Depreciation and Amortization	299	278
Employee Share-Based Compensation Expense	22	23
Deferred Income Tax Provision (Benefit)	19	(4)
Other, Net	(10)	9
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities, Net of Effect of Businesses Acquired:		
Accounts Receivable	(110)	(235)
Inventories	(157)	(144)
Other Current Assets	16	(99)
Accounts Payable	87	79
Other Current Liabilities	(130)	(30)
Other	(26)	(83)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	140	(174)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:		
Capital Expenditures for Property, Plant and Equipment	(514)	(356)
Acquisitions of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired	(12)	(15)
Acquisition of Intellectual Property	(3)	(3)
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates	_	(7)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses, Net	5	2
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities	(524)	(379)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:		
Borrowings (Repayments) of Long-term Debt, Net	1	(5)
Borrowings of Short-term Debt, Net	285	385
Proceeds from Exercise of Warrants	65	_
Other Financing Activities	(2)	1
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities	349	381
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents	3	5
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents	(32)	(167)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period	371	416
1 0 0		
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period	\$ 339	\$ 249
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:		
Interest Paid.	\$ 180	\$ 176
Income Taxes Paid, Net of Refunds	98	66

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

1. General

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Weatherford International Ltd. (the "Company") are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and include all adjustments of a normal recurring nature which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2012, Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011. When referring to "Weatherford" and using phrases such as "we", "us", and "our", the intent is to refer to Weatherford International Ltd. and its subsidiaries as a whole or on a regional basis, depending on the context in which the statements are made.

Although we believe the disclosures in these financial statements are adequate to make the interim information presented not misleading, certain information relating to our organization and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted in this Form 10-Q/A pursuant to U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules and regulations. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 in our restated Annual Report on Form 10-K/A. The results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of the results expected for the year ending December 31, 2012.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including those related to uncollectible accounts receivable, lower of cost or market of inventories, equity investments, intangible assets and goodwill, property, plant and equipment, income taxes, percentage-of-completion accounting for long-term contracts, self-insurance, pension and post retirement benefit plans, contingencies and share-based compensation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation

We consolidate all wholly-owned subsidiaries, controlled joint ventures and variable interest entities where the Company has determined it is the primary beneficiary. Investments in affiliates in which we exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies are accounted for using the equity method. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

2. Restatement of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Taxes

We identified a material weakness in our internal controls over the accounting for income taxes during 2010 and 2011 that resulted in material errors in our income tax accounts. The correction of these errors resulted in the restatement of our previously reported financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, and our condensed consolidated financial statements for each quarter within 2010 and 2009 (the "2010 restatement") and for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 and our condensed consolidated financial statements for each quarter within 2011 and 2010 (the "2011 restatement"). During 2012, in connection with the preparation of our first and second quarter financial statements and our ongoing income tax remediation activities, we identified additional errors related to prior years. Due to the continued accumulation of these errors, the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors concluded, on July 24, 2012, that investors should no longer rely upon our previously issued financial statements. Management determined that we would delay filing restated financial statements until significant procedures and reviews of our accounting for income taxes were performed. As a result of these additional procedures, we identified additional errors across multiple jurisdictions resulting in further restatement of our previously issued financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and our condensed consolidated financial statements for the first quarter of 2012 and each quarter within 2011 and 2010 (the "2012 restatement"). As a result of the 2012 restatement, our provision for income taxes decreased by \$27 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012.

Percentage-of-completion accounting

We have also restated our previously issued financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2012 to correct errors in revenue and operating income associated with an early production facility construction contract in Iraq accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method. Under the accounting guidance applicable to construction-type contracts, claims arising from these contracts that have or will be made against customers for costs incurred in excess of current contract provisions can be recognized as revenue, to the extent of cost incurred, when the contract or other evidence provides a legal basis for the claim, the additional costs were caused by circumstances that were unforeseen at the contract date and are not the result of deficiencies in our performance, claim-related costs are identifiable and considered reasonable in view of the work performed, and evidence supporting the claim is objective and verifiable. During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we included in our revenue estimates claims and unapproved change orders for the recovery of cost overruns of \$20 million that did not meet this recognition criteria. In addition, we did not include in our revenue estimates liquidated damages of \$17 million that we are contractually obligated to pay as a result of delays in the expected completion of the project. With the removal of these amounts from estimated revenues, estimated costs to be incurred under the contract exceed estimated revenue to be earned under contract, and therefore the anticipated loss on the contract as of March 31, 2012 should have been recorded in full during the three months ended March 31, 2012. We have restated our financial statements to correct for these errors, which resulted in a reduction in operating income for the three months ended March 31, 2012 of \$24 million. Although we have not yet met the recognition criteria for revenue recognition are met.

Other

In addition to the adjustments recorded to address our errors in accounting for income taxes and the percentage-of-completion contract, we recorded other adjustments to correct for immaterial errors. As a result of these adjustments, income from operations before income taxes decreased by \$3 million and \$7 million for three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

We have also recorded adjustments to correct for errors in how we historically accounted for valued treasury stock that we issued to employees for stock-based compensation and third parties for acquisitions. While the overall transactions were valued appropriately, the amounts transferred from Treasury Shares to Capital in Excess of Par Value within the Shareholders' Equity section of our balance sheet were incorrect. As a result, we have reclassified \$149 million and \$177 million from Treasury Shares to Capital in Excess of Par Value as of December 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012, respectively.

The following tables summarize the impact of these adjustments on our previously reported results filed on our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011.

The effects of the restatement on our condensed consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2012 are as follows:

	Three M	Three Months Ended March 31, 2012			
	Previously				
	Reported	Adjustments	Restated		
	(In milli	ons, except per share a	mounts)		
Revenues:					
Products	\$ 1,411	\$ 1	\$ 1,412		
Services	2,188	(9)	2,179		
	3,599	(8)	3,591		
Costs and Expenses:					
Cost of Products	1,050	3	1,053		
Cost of Services	1,635	12	1,647		
Research and Development	62	_	62		
Selling, General and Administrative Attributable to Segments	370	2	372		
Corporate General and Administrative	86	1	87		
	3,203	18	3,221		
Operating Income	396	(26)	370		
Other Income (Expense):					
Interest Expense, Net	(112)		(112)		
Other, Net	(17)	(1)	(18)		
Income Before Income Taxes	267	(27)	240		
Provision for Income Taxes	(137)	27	(110)		
Net Income	130	_	130		
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests	(7)		(7)		
Net Income Attributable to Weatherford	\$ 123	\$	\$ 123		
Income Per Share Attributable to Weatherford:					
Basic	\$ 0.16	\$ —	\$ 0.16		
Diluted	\$ 0.16	\$ —	\$ 0.16		
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:					
Basic	760		760		
Diluted	766		760 766		
Diluicu	/00		/00		

The effects of the restatement on our condensed consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2011 are as follows:

	Three M	Three Months Ended March 31, 2011			
	Previously				
	Reported	Adjustments	Restated		
	(In milli	ons, except per share a	mounts)		
Revenues:					
Products	\$ 1,064	\$ —	\$ 1,064		
Services	1,792		1,792		
	2,856	_	2,856		
Costs and Expenses:					
Cost of Products	791	1	792		
Cost of Services	1,340	1	1,341		
Research and Development	60	_	60		
Selling, General and Administrative Attributable to Segments	384	_	384		
Corporate General and Administrative	64	6	70		
	2,639	8	2,647		
Operating Income	217	(8)	209		
Other Income (Expense):					
Interest Expense, Net	(113)	1	(112)		
Other, Net	(19)	<u>_</u>	(19)		
		(-)			
Income Before Income Taxes	85	(7)	78		
Provision for Income Taxes	(46)		(46)		
Net Income	39	(7)	32		
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests	(2)		(2)		
Net Income Attributable to Weatherford	\$ 37	\$ (7)	\$ 30		
Income Per Share Attributable to Weatherford:					
Basic	\$ 0.05	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.04		
Diluted	\$ 0.05	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.04		
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:					
Basic	747	_	747		
Diluted	758	_	758		
9					

The effects of the restatement on our condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2012 are as follows:

		As of March 31, 2012	
	Previously Reported	Adjustments (In millions)	Restated
Current Assets:			
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 339	\$ — \$	
Accounts Receivable	3,358	_	3,358
Inventories	3,303	(2)	3,301
Current Deferred Tax Assets	245	28	273
Other Current Assets	808	8	816
Total Current Assets	8,053	34	8,087
Property, Plant and Equipment	7,585	6	7,591
Goodwill	4,445	1	4,446
Other Intangible Assets	706	_	706
Equity Investments	634	_	634
Other Assets	450	(159)	291
Total Assets	\$ 21,873	\$ (118) \$	21,755
Current Liabilities: Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt Accounts Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities	\$ 1,902 1,679 1,251 4,832	\$ — \$ 5	5 1,902 1,684 1,314 4,900
Long-term Debt	5,989	_	5,989
Other Liabilities	1,119	22	1,141
Total Liabilities	11,940	90	12,030
Shareholders' Equity:			
Shares	775	_	775
Capital in Excess of Par Value	4,889	(177)	4,712
Treasury Shares, at Cost	(479)	177	(302
Retained Earnings	4,475	(218)	4,257
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)	252	10	262
recumulated other comprehensive meome (2005)	9,912	(208)	9,704
Weatherford Shareholders' Equity		_	21
	21		
Weatherford Shareholders' Equity	9,933	(208)	9,725

The effects of the restatement on our condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 2012 are as follows:

		Three Months Ended March 31, 2012					
	Previ Repo			stments illions)	Re	estated	
Net Income	\$	130	\$	´—	\$	130	
Other Comprehensive Income Receivable:							
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment		181		_		181	
Amortization of Pension Components		1				1	
Other Comprehensive Income		182				182	
Comprehensive Income		312		_		312	
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests		(7)				(7)	
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Weatherford	\$	305	\$		\$	305	

The effects of the restatement on our statement of condensed consolidated comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 2011 are as follows:

		Three Months Ended March 31, 2011								
		Previously Reported		Adjustments		Adjustments (In millions)				Restated
Net Income		\$	39	(In millions) (7)	\$	32				
Other Comprehensive Income Receivable:										
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment			181	_		181				
Amortization of Pension Components			1	_		1				
Other Comprehensive Income			182			182				
Comprehensive Income			221	(7)		214				
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests			(2)			(2)				
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Weatherford		\$	219	\$ (7)	\$	212				
	11									

The effects of the restatement on our condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2012 are as follows:

	Three	2012		
	Previously			
	Reported	Adjustments		Restated
		(In million	5)	
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:		0 0		120
Net Income	\$ 130	0 \$	— \$	130
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: Depreciation and Amortization	20	1	(2)	299
	30 2'		(2)	299
Employee Share-Based Compensation Expense Deferred Income Tax Provision (Benefit)	(2		40	19
Other, Net	(1:	*	5	(10)
·	(1.	3)	3	(10)
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities, Net of Effect of Businesses Acquired:	(10)	7)	(2)	(110)
Accounts Receivable Inventories	(10)	,	(3)	(110)
Other Current Assets	(15)	*	1	(157)
	1:			16
Accounts Payable	80		1	87
Other Current Liabilities	(12)	0)	(10)	(130)
Other, Net		4	(30)	(26)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	13	6	4	140
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:				
Capital Expenditures for Property, Plant and Equipment	(51-	4)	_	(514)
Acquisitions of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired	(1:	2)	_	(12)
Acquisition of Intellectual Property	(3)	_	(3)
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates	<u>-</u>	_	_	<u> </u>
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses, Net	:	5	_	5
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities	(52-	4)		(524)
		·/		(= .)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:				
Borrowings (Repayments) of Long-term Debt, Net		1	_	1
Borrowings (Repayments) of Short-term Debt, Net	28:	5	_	285
Proceeds from Exercise of Warrants	6.		_	65
Other Financing Activities, Net	:	2	(4)	(2)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities	350	3	(4)	349
1.00 Cash 110 radd by 1 maileing 1.00 rades				3.7
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents		3	_	3
Enter of Entertaining time changes on cash and cash Equivalents				
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents	(3:	2)	_	(32)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year	37		_	371
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$ 33		_ \$	
7	- 33	<u>-</u>	<u>Ψ</u>	227
10				

The effects of the restatement on our condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2011 are as follows:

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2011			
	Previously			
	Reported	Adjustments	Restated	
	·	(In millions)		
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:				
Net Income	\$ 39	\$ (7)	\$ 32	
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:				
Depreciation and Amortization	277	1	278	
Employee Share-Based Compensation Expense	23	_	23	
Deferred Income Tax Provision (Benefit)	(4)	_	(4)	
Other, Net	11	(2)	9	
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities, Net of Effect of Businesses Acquired:				
Accounts Receivable	(235)	_	(235)	
Inventories	(144)	_	(144)	
Other Current Assets	(107)	8	(99)	
Accounts Payable	79	_	79	
Other Current Liabilities	(70)	40	(30)	
Other, Net	(42)	(41)	(83)	
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities	(173)	(1)	(174)	
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:				
Capital Expenditures for Property, Plant and Equipment	(356)	_	(356)	
Acquisitions of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired	(15)	_	(15)	
Acquisition of Intellectual Property	(3)	_	(3)	
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates	(7)	_	(7)	
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses, Net	2	_	2	
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities	(379)		(379)	
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:				
Borrowings (Repayments) of Long-term Debt, Net	(5)	_	(5)	
Borrowings (Repayments) of Short-term Debt, Net	385	<u></u>	385	
Other Financing Activities, Net	_	1	1	
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities	380	1	381	
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents	5		5	
	,	_	3	
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents	(167)	_	(167)	
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year	416		416	
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$ 249	\$	\$ 249	
13				

3. Business Combinations and Planned Dispositions

We have acquired businesses we feel are important to our long-term growth strategy. Results of operations for acquisitions are included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations from the date of acquisition. The balances included in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets related to recent acquisitions are based on preliminary information and are subject to change when final asset valuations are obtained and potential liabilities have been evaluated. The purchase price is allocated to the net assets acquired based upon their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.

We acquired various businesses and equity investments during the three months ended March 31, 2012 for cash consideration of \$12 million, net of cash acquired.

During the three months ended March, 31 2012, we approved a plan, and executed an agreement, to sell our subsea controls business in exchange for an equity stake in an entity that is positioned to provide complete subsea solutions to clients. The closing of the transaction, which is expected to occur during the second quarter, is subject to clearance under the applicable competition laws. As of March 31, 2012, the carrying amount of the major classes of assets held for sale included \$16 million of accounts receivable, \$39 million of inventories, \$22 million of other current assets, \$4 million of property plant and equipment and \$47 million in goodwill. Liabilities held for sale totaled \$31 million at March 31, 2012. These assets and liabilities have been reclassified and presented, gross, in Other Current Assets and Liabilities. Upon approval of the plan to sell, we recognized no impairment as the fair value of the business exceeded its book value, net of costs to sell.

4. Inventories

The components of inventory were as follows:

	M	arch 31, 2012	De	ecember 31, 2011
		(In mi	lio	ns)
Raw materials, components and supplies	\$	448	\$	443
Work in process		178		149
Finished goods		2,675		2,566
	\$	3,301	\$	3,158

Work in process and finished goods inventories include the cost of materials, labor and manufacturing overhead.

5. Goodwill

We perform an impairment test for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets annually as of October 1, or more frequently if indicators of potential impairment exist. Our goodwill impairment test involves a comparison of the fair value of each of our reporting units with its carrying amount. Our reporting units are based on our regional structure and consist of the United States, Canada, Latin America, Europe, Sub-Sahara Africa ("SSA"), Russia, Middle East/North Africa ("MENA") and Asia Pacific. During the course of 2011, the market price of our common stock declined significantly; however, we concluded that the decline did not constitute an indicator of potential impairment as there had not been a significant change in the estimated future cash flows of our reporting units. Ultimately, our 2011 impairment test performed as of October 1 indicated goodwill was not impaired.

None of our reporting units failed the first step of our impairment test during 2011, as their fair values were in excess of their carrying value. The fair values of our MENA, Russia, SSA and Latin America reporting units were closest to their carrying values; and were in excess of their carrying values in a range from 15% to 23% at October 1, 2011.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2012, were as follows:

	Nort	h America	 MENA/ Asia Pacific	Euro SSA/R (In mill	ussia	Latin America	Total
As of December 31, 2011	\$	2,272	\$ 743	\$	1,024	\$ 384	\$ 4,423
Acquisitions		7	_			_	7
Disposals (a)		(1)	(4)		(42)	_	(47)
Purchase price and other adjustments		(8)	_		_	_	(8)
Foreign currency translation		28	4		39	 <u> </u>	 71
As of March 31, 2012	\$	2,298	\$ 743	\$	1,021	\$ 384	\$ 4,446

(a) Represents reclassification of goodwill to assets held for sale. See Note 3 – Business Combinations.

6. Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt

The components of short-term borrowings were as follows:

March 31, 2012			mber 31, 2011
	(In mil	lions)	
\$	1,285	\$	997
	11		14
	1,296		1,011
	606		309
\$	1,902	\$	1,320
		\$ 1,285 11 1,296 606	\$ 1,285 \$ 11 1,296 606

We maintain a \$2.25 billion unsecured, revolving credit agreement (the "Credit Agreement") with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent. The Credit Agreement has a scheduled maturity date of July 13, 2016, and can be used for a combination of borrowings, support for our commercial paper program and issuances of letters of credit. This agreement requires us to maintain a debt-to-capitalization ratio of less than 60% and it limits our total debt to \$10 billion while our financial reporting is not current. We are in compliance with these covenants at March 31, 2012. At March 31, 2012, our borrowings under our commercial paper program had a weighted average interest rate of 0.65% and there were \$82 million in outstanding letters of credit under the Credit Agreement. On April 16, 2012, we increased the size of our commercial paper program to \$2.25 billion from \$1.5 billion. From time to time, we use the commercial paper program to issue short-term, unsecured notes. Our commercial paper issuances are supported by the Credit Agreement.

We have short-term borrowings with various domestic and international institutions pursuant to uncommitted facilities. At March 31, 2012, we had \$11 million in short-term borrowings under these arrangements with a weighted average interest rate of 6.7%. In addition, we had \$415 million of letters of credit under various uncommitted facilities and \$195 million of performance bonds issued by financial sureties against an indemnification from us at March 31, 2012.

The carrying value of our short-term borrowings approximates their fair value as of March 31, 2012. The current portion of long-term debt at March 31, 2012 includes \$273 million for our senior notes due June 2012 and other long-term debt totaling \$333 million.

7. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounts Receivable Factoring

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, our Latin America segment factored approximately \$51 million of accounts receivables under the program we entered into in 2010. We received \$47 million in proceeds and recognized a loss of less than one million on these sales. These transactions qualified for sale accounting under the accounting standards and the proceeds received through March 31, 2012 are included in operating cash flows in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. We did not factor accounts receivables during the three months ended March 31, 2011.

Financial Instruments Measured and Recognized at Fair Value

We estimate fair value at a price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market for the asset or liability. Our valuation techniques require inputs that we categorize using a three level hierarchy, from highest to lowest level of observable inputs. Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices or other market data for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based upon our own judgment and assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value. Classification of a financial asset or liability within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Other than disclosed below under derivative instruments, we had no assets or liabilities measured and recognized at fair value on a recurring basis at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Our other financial instruments include short-term borrowings and long-term debt. The carrying value of our commercial paper and other short-term borrowings approximates their fair value due to the short-term duration of the associated interest rate periods. These short-term borrowings are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of our long-term debt fluctuates with changes in applicable interest rates. Fair value will exceed carrying value when the current market interest rate is lower than the interest rate at which the debt was originally issued. The fair value of our long-term debt is a measure of its current value under present market conditions and is established based on observable inputs in non-active markets. Our long-term debt is classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value and carrying value of our long-term debt and current portion of long-term debt is as follows:

	March 31, 2012		ecember 1, 2011
	(In n	illion.	s)
Fair value	\$ 7,24	9 \$	7,270
Carrying value	6,59	5	6,595

8. Derivative Instruments

We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency and changes in interest rates. From time to time, we may enter into derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk. We manage our debt portfolio to achieve an overall desired position of fixed and floating rates and we may employ interest rate swaps as a tool to achieve that goal. The major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the interest rates affecting the fair value of such instruments, potential increases in interest expense due to market increases in floating interest rates and the creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions. In light of events in the global credit markets and the potential impact of these events on the liquidity of the banking industry, we continue to monitor the creditworthiness of our counterparties, which are multinational commercial banks.

The fair values of all our outstanding derivative instruments are determined using a model with Level 2 inputs including quoted market prices for contracts with similar terms and maturity dates.

Fair Value Hedges

We may use interest rate swaps to help mitigate exposures related to changes in the fair values of the associated debt. Amounts paid or received upon termination of interest rate swaps accounted for as fair value hedges represent the fair value of the agreements at the time of termination and are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt. These amounts are amortized as a reduction, in the case of gains, or as an increase, in the case of losses, of interest expense over the remaining term of the debt. As of March 31, 2012, we had net unamortized gains of \$44 million associated with interest rate swap terminations

In July 2011, we entered into interest rate swap agreements to pay a variable interest rate and receive a fixed interest rate with an aggregate notional amount of \$300 million. These swaps were designated as fair value hedges of our 6.35% Senior Notes. These agreements are determined to be highly effective. The effects of any ineffectiveness were not material to the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations as the changes in the fair values of the interest rate swaps offset changes in the fair value of the underlying debt. The aggregate fair value of the interest rate swaps at March 31, 2012 resulted in an asset of \$14 million with a corresponding increase to Long-term Debt on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of March 31, 2012, we had no other fair value hedges.

Cash Flow Hedges

In 2008, we entered into interest rate derivative instruments to hedge projected exposures to interest rates in anticipation of a debt offering. Those hedges were terminated at the time of the issuance of the debt, and the loss on these hedges is being amortized from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income into interest expense over the remaining term of the debt. As of March 31, 2012, we had net unamortized losses of \$12 million associated with our cash flow hedge terminations.

Other Derivative Instruments

As of March 31, 2012, we had foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts aggregating to \$756 million. These contracts were entered into to hedge exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies. The total estimated fair value of these contracts and amounts receivable or owed associated with closed contracts resulted in a net liability of approximately \$5 million. These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other, Net in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the Canadian dollar. At March 31, 2012, we had notional amounts outstanding of \$168 million. The total estimated fair value of these contracts at March 31, 2012, resulted in a liability of \$33 million. These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other, Net in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The fair values of outstanding derivative instruments are summarized as follows:

	March 31, December 2011 31, 2011			Classifications
	(In r	nillions)		
Derivative assets designated as hedges:				
Interest rate swaps	\$ 1	4 \$	13	Other Assets
Derivative assets not designated as hedges:				
Foreign currency forward contracts		8	20	Other Current Assets
Derivative liabilities not designated as				
hedges:				
Foreign currency forward contracts	1	3	8	Other Current Liabilities
Interest rate locks	_	_	9	Other Current Liabilities
Cross-currency swap contracts	3	3	27	Other Liabilities

9. Shareholders' Equity

The following summarizes our shareholders' equity activity for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011:

	Issued S	hares	Е	Capital In xcess of Par Value (Restated)	Retained Earnings (Restated)	C	Accumulated Other omprehensive (ncome (Loss) (In millions)	asury Shares Restated)		Noncontrolling Interests				Total Shareholders' Equity (Restated)	
Balance at December 31,															
2010	\$	761	\$	4,617	\$ 3,949	\$	202	\$ (478)	\$	67	\$	9,118			
Net Income		_		_	30		_	_		2		32			
Other Comprehensive Income		_		_	_		182	_		_		182			
Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests		_		_	_		_	_		(5)		(5)			
Equity Awards Granted, Vested and Exercised		_		(19)	_		_	30		_		11			
Other		2		(2)	1		(1)	_		1		1			
Balance at March 31, 2011	\$	763	\$	4,596	\$ 3,980	\$	383	\$ (448)	\$	65	\$	9,339			
Balance at December 31, 2011	\$	769	\$	4,675	\$ 4,134	\$	80	\$ (334)	\$	21	\$	9,345			
Net Income		_		_	123		_	_		7		130			
Other Comprehensive Income		_					182					182			
Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests										(7)		(7)			
Equity Awards Granted,		_		_	_		_	_		(7)		(7)			
Vested and Exercised		_		(21)	_		_	32		_		11			
Other		6		58	_		_	_		_		64			
Balance at March 31, 2012	\$	775	\$	4,712	\$ 4,257	\$	262	\$ (302)	\$	21	\$	9,725			

At December 31, 2011, warrants were outstanding to purchase up to 8.6 million of our shares at a price of \$15.00 per share and were exercisable until February 28, 2012. On February 28, 2012, 4.3 million of these warrants were exercised through physical delivery of shares in exchange for \$65 million, and the remaining 4.3 million of these warrants were exercised through net share settlement resulting in the issuance of 494,000 shares.

10. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share for all periods presented equals net income divided by the weighted average number of our shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of our shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the dilutive effect of our stock options, restricted shares, performance units and warrants. Our diluted earnings per share calculation excludes three million potential shares for the three months ended March 31, 2012, and one million potential shares for the three months ended March 31, 2011, due to their anti-dilutive effect.

The following reconciles basic and diluted weighted average of shares outstanding:

	Three M Ended Ma	
	2012	2011
	(In mill	ions)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding	760	747
Dilutive effect of:		
Stock options, restricted shares and performance units	5	7
Warrants	1	4
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding	766	758

11. Share-Based Compensation

We recognized the following employee share-based compensation expense during the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011:

	_		Months Iarch 31,
	_	2012	2011
	_	(In mi	llions)
Share-based compensation	\$	22	\$ 23
Related tax benefit		8	:

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we issued approximately one million performance units, which will vest with continued employment and if the Company meets certain market-based performance goals. The performance units have a weighted-average grant date fair value of \$21.52 per share based on the Monte Carlo simulation method. As of March 31, 2012, there was \$35 million of unrecognized compensation related to our performance units. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of two years.

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we also granted one million restricted share awards at a weighted average grant date fair value of \$16.49 per share. As of March 31, 2012, there was \$81 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to all of our unvested restricted share grants. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of two years.

12. Retirement and Employee Benefit Plans

We have defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans covering certain employees. The components of net periodic benefit cost for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

	Three Months Ended March 31,								
		20	12		2011				
	United States		Non	U.S.	United States	ľ	Non U.S.		
				(In mill					
Service cost	\$	_	\$	2	\$ —	\$	2		
Interest cost		1		2	1		2		
Expected return on plan assets				(1)			(1)		
Net periodic benefit cost	\$	1	\$	3	\$ 1	\$	3		

As previously disclosed in our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, we expected to contribute less than \$1 million in the U.S. and approximately \$9 million internationally to our pension and other post-retirement benefit plans during 2012. As of March 31, 2012, we have contributed approximately \$5 million to these plans.

13. Segment Information

Financial information by segment is summarized below. Revenues are attributable to countries based on the ultimate destination of the sale of products or performance of services.

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2012									
	Ope Rev	Net erating venues stated)	Income from Operations (Restated) (In millions)	Depreciation and Amortization (Restated)						
North America	\$	1,754	\$ 358	\$ 95						
MENA/Asia Pacific		595	22	83						
Europe/SSA/Russia		571	66	61						
Latin America		671	83	55						
		3,591	529	294						
Corporate and Research and Development		_	(112)	5						
Other (a)			(47)							
Total	\$	3,591	\$ 370	\$ 299						

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2011								
	Net Operating Revenues		Income from Operations (Restated) (In millions	A	Depreciation and Amortization (Restated)				
North America	\$	1,360	\$ 282	2 \$	88				
MENA/Asia Pacific		576	ç)	82				
Europe/SSA/Russia		510	39)	57				
Latin America (b)		410	20)	46				
		2,856	350)	273				
Corporate and Research and Development		_	(120))	5				
Other (c)			(21	.) _	<u> </u>				
Total	\$	2,856	\$ 209	\$	278				

- (a) The three months ended March 31, 2012 includes \$31 million for severance and exit costs, income tax restatement and material weakness remediation expenses of \$14 million and \$2 million in legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going investigations.
- (b) The three months ended March 31, 2011 was negatively impacted by a \$16 million charge due to an equity tax enacted in Colombia.
- (c) The three months ended March 31, 2011 includes \$11 million for severance, \$9 million in connection with the termination of a corporate consulting contract and \$1 million for legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going investigations.

Early in 2011, our operations in Libya were disrupted by civil unrest. Most employees were evacuated and steps were taken to safeguard assets within the country. Due to the on-going hostilities, we were unable to physically verify the existence or condition of the majority of our assets in country for most of 2011 and the information available to us about those assets evolved during the year. Additionally, due to international sanctions against all entities affiliated with the Libyan government, we were unable to pursue collections of accounts receivable from a significant portion of our Libyan customers. In the fourth quarter, hostilities subsided and limited company personnel were able to re-enter the country. Additionally, we were able to engage in discussions with our customers. Following an examination of our Libyan assets and evaluation of our accounts receivable from Libyan customers, we recognized an expense of \$59 million primarily to establish a reserve for receivables, machinery and equipment and inventory in Libya. Our operations in Libya have not resumed. Given our evacuation from the country, it may be difficult, if not impossible, for us to safeguard and recover all of our operating assets; our ability to do so will depend on the local turn of events. At March 31, 2012, we had inventory and property, plant and equipment in Libya with a carrying value of \$119 million, as well as \$4 million of accounts receivable. We risk loss of assets in any location where hostilities arise and persist. In these areas we also may not be able to perform the work we are contracted to perform, which could lead to forfeiture of performance bonds.

14. Disputes, Litigation and Contingencies

U.S. Government and Internal Investigations

We are currently involved in government and internal investigations.

Until 2003, we participated in the United Nations oil-for-food program governing sales of goods and services into Iraq. The U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") and the SEC have undertaken investigations of our participation in the oil-for-food program and have subpoenaed certain documents in connection with these investigations. We have cooperated fully with these investigations. We have retained legal counsel, reporting to our audit committee, to investigate this matter. We are in negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these matters, but we cannot yet anticipate the timing, outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations, financial or otherwise.

The U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Industry & Security, Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC"), DOJ and SEC have undertaken investigations of allegations of improper sales of products and services by the Company and its subsidiaries in certain sanctioned countries. We have cooperated fully with this investigation. We have retained legal counsel, reporting to our audit committee, to investigate these matters. We have been in negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these matters for more than a year, and we believe those negotiations have advanced significantly, but significant uncertainties remain and therefore we cannot yet anticipate the timing, outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigation, financial or otherwise.

In light of these investigations, the U.S. and foreign policy environment and the inherent uncertainties surrounding these countries, we decided in September 2007 to direct our foreign subsidiaries to discontinue doing business in countries that are subject to comprehensive U.S. economic and trade sanctions, specifically Cuba, Iran, and Sudan, as well as Syria. Effective September 2007, we ceased entering into any new contracts in these countries and began an orderly discontinuation and winding down of our existing business in these sanctioned countries. Effective March 31, 2008, we substantially completed our winding down of business in these countries and have conducted further withdrawal activities, pursuant to the licenses issued by OFAC, which have now ceased. Certain of our subsidiaries continue to conduct business in countries such as Myanmar that are subject to more limited U.S. trading sanctions. In 2011, the country of South Sudan came into formal existence without the same sanction restrictions as those imposed upon Sudan; the Company may operate in South Sudan.

The DOJ and SEC are investigating our compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") and other laws worldwide. We have retained legal counsel, reporting to our audit committee, to investigate these matters and to cooperate fully with the DOJ and SEC. As part of our investigations, we have uncovered potential violations of U.S. law in connection with activities in several jurisdictions. We have been in negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these matters for more than a year, but we cannot yet anticipate the timing, outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations, financial or otherwise.

The DOJ, SEC and other agencies and authorities have a broad range of civil and criminal penalties they may seek to impose against corporations and individuals for violations of trade sanctions laws, the FCPA and other federal statutes including, but not limited to, injunctive relief, disgorgement, fines, penalties and modifications to business practices and compliance programs. In recent years, these agencies and authorities have entered into agreements with, and obtained a range of penalties against, several corporations and individuals in similar investigations, under which civil and criminal penalties were imposed, including in some cases fines and other penalties and sanctions in the tens and hundreds of millions of dollars. These agencies are seeking to impose penalties against us for past conduct, but the ultimate amount of any penalties we may pay currently cannot be reasonably estimated, nor can a range of potential loss be reasonably determined at this time. Under trade sanctions laws, the DOJ may also seek to impose modifications to business practices, including immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other limitations that decrease our business, and modifications to compliance programs, which may increase compliance costs. Any injunctive relief, disgorgement, fines, penalties, sanctions or imposed modifications to business practices resulting from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations, and the cost of our investigations have been significant. In addition, our historical activities in sanctioned countries, such as Sudan and Iran, could result in certain investors, such as government-sponsored pension funds, divesting of or not investing in, our shares. Based on available information, we cannot predict what, if any, actions the DOJ, SEC or other authorities will take in our situation or the effect any such actions will have on our consolidated financial position or results of operations. To the extent we violated trade sanctions laws, the

Through March 31, 2012, we have incurred \$43 million for costs in connection with our exit from sanctioned countries and incurred \$125 million for legal and professional fees in connection with complying with and conducting these on-going investigations.

In addition, the SEC and the DOJ are investigating the circumstances surrounding the material weakness in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting for income taxes that was disclosed on Forms 12b-25 and 8-K on March 1, 2011 and February 21, 2012, respectively, and the related restatements of our historical financial statements. We are cooperating with the government investigation.

Macondo Litigation

On April 20, 2010, the Deepwater Horizon rig operating under contract with BP at the Macondo well in the Gulf of Mexico exploded and sank, resulting in 11 deaths, several injuries and significant damages to property and the environment.

We provided the following services and products to BP on the Macondo well: (1) connected and tightened four intermediate casing strings and one tapered production string ("long string"); (2) furnished a liner hanger on one casing string; (3) furnished centralizers, most of which were not used in the well, and (4) provided float equipment on the long string. The float equipment consisted of a reamer shoe, a float collar and wiper plugs. The float collar is designed to control backflow or ingress of the cement through the shoe track while the cement hardens. At the time of the explosion, we had two employees on the Deepwater Horizon; they sustained minor injuries.

As a result of the explosion, approximately 400 lawsuits were filed, mainly for personal injuries, wrongful death and pollution damage. We are named, along with BP and other defendants, in several dozen of these lawsuits. The United States Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation issued an order centralizing most of these cases in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana. The pollution damage complaints generally refer to the Oil Pollution Act of 1990 ("OPA") and allege, among other things, negligence and gross negligence by us and other defendants. They allege that we and the other defendants are responsible for property damage, trespass, nuisance and economic loss as a result of environmental pollution and generally seek awards of unspecified economic, compensatory, and punitive damages, as well as injunctive relief.

We were not designated as a "Responsible Party," as that term is defined by OPA. Therefore, we were not charged with responsibility for cleaning up the oil released from the Macondo well or handling any claims. The Responsible Party may make a claim for contribution against any other party it alleges contributed to the oil spill. Since we have not been named a Responsible Party, we sought to be dismissed from any and all OPA-related claims.

In June 2011, we reached an agreement with BP wherein BP agreed to indemnify us for the vast majority of our potential exposure related to the Macondo incident, including OPA claims. Pursuant to this agreement, we agreed to pay BP \$75 million, an amount covered by our insurance policies.

In February 2012, the Court in which the consolidated Multidistrict Litigation is pending dismissed all claims against Weatherford, finding that there was no evidence that the Weatherford equipment used in the Macondo well was defective or that any actions or inactions by Weatherford caused or contributed to the cause of the blowout and oil spill. Subsequent to these claims being dismissed, new claims were brought against the Company, and may continue to be brought against the Company, in Federal District Court. These claims have been, and we expect that they will continue to be, consolidated into the Multidistrict Litigation. We expect such new claims will also be dismissed. Additionally, claims brought against us in state court, which have not been consolidated in the Multidistrict Litigation, are still pending. We cannot predict whether or not those claims will proceed against Weatherford. However, given the dismissal of the claims against us in the Multidistrict Litigation and the June 2011 indemnification agreement with BP, we do not believe that we have any material exposure with regard to these remaining claims. Additional lawsuits could be filed in the future relating to the Macondo incident.

Additionally, we are cooperating fully with the investigations of the accident initiated by various agencies of the U.S. government and, to the extent requested, have responded to several subpoenas, information and document requests and requests for testimony of employees.

Shareholder Litigation

In 2010, shareholders filed suit in Weatherford's name against those directors in place before June 2010 and certain current and former members of management relating to the U.S. government and internal investigations disclosed above and in our SEC filings since 2007. Separately, in 2011 and 2012, shareholders filed suit relating to the material weakness in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting for income taxes that was disclosed on Forms 12b-25 and 8-K filed on March 1, 2011 and February 21, 2012, respectively, and the related restatement of historical financial statements. These suits name the Company as well as current and former members of management and our directors. We cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these claims.

Other Disputes

Our former Senior Vice President and General Counsel (the "Executive") left the Company in June 2009. The Executive had employment agreements with us that terminated on his departure. There is currently a dispute between the Executive and us as to the amount of compensation we are obligated to pay under these employment agreements based on the Executive's separation. This dispute has not resulted in a lawsuit being filed. It is our belief that an unfavorable outcome regarding this dispute is not probable, and as such, we have not accrued for \$9 million of the Executive's claimed severance and other benefits.

Additionally, we are aware of various disputes and potential claims and are a party in various litigation involving claims against us, some of which are covered by insurance. For claims, disputes and pending litigation in which we believe a negative outcome is probable and a loss can be reasonably estimated, we have recorded a liability for the expected loss. These liabilities are immaterial to our financial condition and results of operations. In addition we have certain claims, disputes and pending litigation in which we do not believe a negative outcome is probable or for which we can only estimate a range of liability. If one or more negative outcomes were to occur, the impact to our financial condition could be as high as \$45 million.

15. New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued new guidance to achieve common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements between U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and International Financial Reporting Standards. This new guidance amends current fair value measurement and disclosure guidance to include increased transparency around valuation inputs and investment categorization. This new guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Our adoption of the new guidance did not impact our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows, although it did require additional fair value disclosures.

In June 2011, the FASB issued new guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income. The new guidance allows an entity to present components of net income and other comprehensive income in one continuous statement, referred to as the statement of comprehensive income, or in two separate, but consecutive statements. The new guidance eliminates the current option to report other comprehensive income and its components in the statement of changes of shareholders' equity. While the new guidance changes the presentation of comprehensive income, there are no changes to the components that are recognized in net income or other comprehensive income under current accounting guidance. In December 2011, the FASB modified the June guidance to defer the requirement that companies present reclassification adjustments for each component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in both net income and other comprehensive income. This guidance, with the exception of the deferral, is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Our adoption of the new guidance did not impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Consistent with the guidance we have presented comprehensive income and the components of comprehensive income in a separate statement that immediately follows the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

16. Subsequent Events

On April 4, 2012, we completed a \$1.3 billion long-term debt offering comprised of (1) \$750 million of 4.5% Senior Notes due 2022 and (2) \$550 million of 5.95% Senior Notes due 2042. The net proceeds from this offering were used to repay short-term indebtedness under our commercial paper program and for general corporate purposes.

On April 16, 2012, we increased the size of our commercial paper program to \$2.25 billion from \$1.5 billion. From time to time, we use the commercial paper program to issue short-term, unsecured notes. Our commercial paper issuances are supported by the Credit Agreement.

17. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

A Swiss joint-stock company named Weatherford International Ltd. is the ultimate parent of the Weatherford group ("Weatherford Switzerland or Parent"). The Parent guarantees the obligations of Weatherford International Ltd., which is incorporated in Bermuda ("Weatherford Bermuda") and Weatherford International, Inc., which is incorporated in Delaware ("Weatherford Delaware"), noted below.

The following obligations of Weatherford Delaware were guaranteed by Weatherford Bermuda at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011: (1) the 5.95% Senior Notes, (2) the 6.35% Senior Notes and (3) the 6.80% Senior Notes.

The following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011: (1) the revolving credit facility, (2) the 4.95% Senior Notes, (3) the 5.50% Senior Notes, (4) the 6.50% Senior Notes, (5) the 5.15% Senior Notes, (6) the 6.00% Senior Notes, (7) the 7.00% Senior Notes, (8) the 9.625% Senior Notes, (9) the 9.875% Senior Notes, (10) the 5.125% Senior Notes and (11) the 6.75% Senior Notes.

As a result of the guarantee arrangements, we are required to present the following condensed consolidating financial information. The accompanying guarantor financial information is presented on the equity method of accounting for all periods presented. Under this method, investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost and adjusted for our share in the subsidiaries' cumulative results of operations, capital contributions and distributions and other changes in equity. Elimination entries relate primarily to the elimination of investments in subsidiaries and associated intercompany balances and transactions.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet March 31, 2012 (Unaudited) (Restated) (In millions)

		therford zerland		eatherford Bermuda		Veatherford Delaware	Sı	Other ubsidiaries	Eliminations		Consolidation	
Current Assets:												
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$	1	\$	_	\$	3	\$	335	\$	_	\$	339
Other Current Assets		5		9		116		7,676		(58)		7,748
Total Current Assets		6		9	_	119		8,011		(58)		8,087
Equity Investments in Affiliates		9,946		15,547		8,023		12,102		(45,618)		_
Shares Held in Parent		_		_		5		298		(303)		_
Intercompany Receivables, Net		_		1,282		82				(1,364)		_
Other Non-current Assets		19		36		50		13,563		_		13,668
Total Assets	\$	9,971	\$	16,874	\$	8,279	\$	33,974	\$	(47,343)	\$	21,755
Current Liabilities:												
Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of												
Long-term Debt	\$	_	\$	1,587	\$	292	\$	23	\$	_	\$	1,902
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities		15		27				3,014		(58)		2,998
Total Current Liabilities		15		1,614		292		3,037		(58)		4,900
Long-term Debt		_		4,868		1,041		80		_		5,989
Intercompany Payables, Net		252				· -		1,111		(1,363)		
Other Non-current Liabilities		_		81		2		1,058		_		1,141
Total Liabilities		267		6,563		1,335		5,286		(1,421)		12,030
Weatherford Shareholders' Equity		9,704		10,311		6,944		28,667		(45,922)		9,704
Noncontrolling Interests),,,oi		10,511		0,711		21		(13,722)		21
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity	\$	9,971	\$	16,874	\$	8,279	\$	33,974	\$	(47,343)	\$	21,755
Total Enginees and Shareholders Equity	Ψ	7,771	Ψ	25	<u> </u>	6,277	y	33,714	Ψ	(+7,5+3)	Ψ	21,733

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet December 31, 2011 (Restated) (In millions)

	Weatherford Switzerland	Weatherford Bermuda		Veatherford Delaware	Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidation
Current Assets:							
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ —	\$ -	- \$	_	\$ 371	\$ —	\$ 371
Other Current Assets	3	1	6	147	7,293	(99)	7,360
Total Current Assets	3	1	6	147	7,664	(99)	7,731
Equity Investments in Affiliates	9,654	15,28	7	7,770	12,102	(44,813)	_
Shares Held in Parent	_	_	_	4	330	(334)	_
Intercompany Receivables, Net	_	1,25	2	64	_	(1,316)	_
Other Non-current Assets	20	3	7	32	13,231		13,320
Total Assets	\$ 9,677	\$ 16,59	2 \$	8,017	\$ 33,327	\$ (46,562)	\$ 21,051
Current Liabilities:							
Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-Term Debt	\$ _	\$ 1,00	5 \$	292	\$ 23	\$ —	\$ 1,320
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities	10	13			2,919	(99)	2,963
Total Current Liabilities	10	1,13	8	292	2,942	(99)	4,283
Long-term Debt	_	5,16	3	1,046	77	_	6,286
Intercompany Payables, Net	343	-	-	_	972	(1,315)	_
Other Non-current Liabilities	_	8	1	5	1,051	_	1,137
Total Liabilities	353	6,38	2	1,343	5,042	(1,414)	11,706
Weatherford Shareholders' Equity	9,324	10,21	0	6,674	28,264	(45,148)	9,324
Noncontrolling Interests		_	_		21	— · · · · — ·	21
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity	\$ 9,677	\$ 16,59	2 \$	8,017	\$ 33,327	\$ (46,562)	\$ 21,051

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 (Unaudited) (Restated) (In millions)

	erford erland	Weatherford Bermuda	Weatherford Delaware	Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidation
Revenues	\$ _	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 3,591	\$ <u> </u>	\$ 3,591
Costs and Expenses	(16)	(1)	(1)	(3,203)		(3,221)
Operating Income (Loss)	 (16)	(1)	(1)	388		370
Other Income (Expense):						
Interest Income (Expense), Net	_	(89)	(19)	(4)	_	(112)
Intercompany Charges, Net	_	8	25	(33)	_	-
Equity in Subsidiary Income (Loss)	139	261	254	_	(654)	_
Other, Net	 	(35)		17		(18)
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes	123	144	259	368	(654)	240
Provision for Income Taxes	 		(2)	(108)		(110)
Net Income (Loss)	123	144	257	260	(654)	130
Noncontrolling Interests	 <u> </u>			(7)	<u>_</u>	<u>(7)</u>
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Weatherford	\$ 123	\$ 144	\$ 257	\$ 253	\$ (654)	\$ 123
Comprehensive Income Attributable to						
Weatherford	\$ 123	\$ 144	\$ 257	\$ 435	\$ (654)	\$ 305

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 (Unaudited) (Restated) (In millions)

	ntherford tzerland	Weatherford Bermuda	Weatherford Delaware	Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidation
Revenues	\$ _	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 2,856	\$ —	\$ 2,856
Costs and Expenses	 (21)	(1)	(1)	(2,624)	<u> </u>	(2,647)
Operating Income (Loss)	(21)	(1)	(1)	232		209
Other Income (Expense):						
Interest Income (Expense), Net	_	(87)	(23)	(2)	_	(112)
Intercompany Charges, Net	_	_	33	(33)	_	_
Equity in Subsidiary Income (Loss)	51	203	195	_	(449)	
Other, Net	 <u> </u>	(49)		30		(19)
Income (Loss) from Before Income Taxes	30	66	204	227	(449)	78
Provision for Income Taxes	 <u> </u>	<u></u>	3	(49)	<u></u>	(46)
Net Income (Loss)	30	66	207	178	(449)	32
Noncontrolling Interests	\$ <u> </u>	\$	\$	\$ (2)	\$	\$ (2)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Weatherford	\$ 30	\$ 66	\$ 207	\$ 176	\$ (449)	\$ 30
Comprehensive Income Attributable to						
Weatherford	\$ 30	\$ 66	\$ 207	\$ 358	\$ (449)	\$ 212

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 (Unaudited) (Restated) (In millions)

	Weatherford Switzerland	Weatherford Bermuda	Weatherford Delaware	Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidation
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:						
Net Income (Loss)	\$ 123	\$ 144	\$ 257	\$ 260	\$ (654)	\$ 130
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income(Loss) to Net						
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:						
Charges from Parent or Subsidiary	_	(8)	(25)	33	_	_
Equity in (Earnings) Loss of Affiliates	(139)	(261)	(254)	_	654	_
Deferred Income Tax Benefit	_	_	(19)	38	_	19
Other Adjustments	9	(136)	(155)	273		(9)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	(7)	(261)	(196)	604		140
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:						
Capital Expenditures for Property, Plant and Equipment	_	_	_	(514)	_	(514)
Acquisitions of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired	_	_	_	(12)	_	(12)
Acquisition of Intellectual Property	_	_	_	(3)	_	(3)
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated				· ·		, í
Affiliates	_	_	_	_	_	_
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses, Net	_	_	_	5	_	5
Capital Contribution to Subsidiary	_	_	_	_	_	_
Other Investing Activities	_	_	_	_	_	_
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities				(524)		(524)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:						
Borrowings (Repayments) Short-term Debt, Net	_	288	_	(3)	_	285
Borrowings (Repayments) Long-term Debt, Net	_	_	(6)	7	_	1
Borrowings (Repayments) Between Subsidiaries, Net	8	(27)	205	(186)	_	_
Proceeds from Capital Contribution	_	_	_	_	_	_
Other, Net				63		63
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities	8	261	199	(119)		349
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents				3		3
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents	1	_	3	(36)	_	(32)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year		_	_	371		371
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$ 1	\$	\$ 3	\$ 335	\$	\$ 339

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 (Unaudited) (Restated) (In millions)

	Weatherford Switzerland	Weatherford Bermuda	Weatherford Delaware	Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidation
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:						
Net Income (Loss)	\$ 30	\$ 66	\$ 207	\$ 178	\$ (449)	\$ 32
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income(Loss) to Net						
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:						
Charges from Parent or Subsidiary	_	_	(33)	33	_	_
Equity in (Earnings) Loss of Affiliates	(51)	(203)	(195)	_	449	_
Deferred Income Tax Benefit	_	_	(3)	(1)	_	(4)
Other Adjustments	8	(100)	25	(135)		(202)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	(13)	(237)	1	75	_	(174)
		<u> </u>				
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:						
Capital Expenditures for Property, Plant and						
Equipment	_	_	_	(356)	_	(356)
Acquisitions of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired	_	_	_	(15)	_	(15)
Acquisition of Intellectual Property	_	_	_	(3)	_	(3)
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated						
Affiliate	_	_	_	(7)	_	(7)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses, Net				2		2
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities				(379)		(379)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:						
Borrowings (Repayments) Short-term Debt, Net	_	385	_	_	_	385
Borrowings (Repayments) Long-term Debt, Net	_	_	(4)	(1)	_	(5)
Borrowings (Repayments) Between Subsidiaries, Net	13	(262)	(4)	253	_	_
Other, Net				1		1
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities	13	123	(8)	253		381
Effect of Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash						
Equivalents				5		5
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash						
Equivalents	_	(114)	(7)	(46)	_	(167)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year		114	12	290		416
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$	\$ —	\$ 5	\$ 244	\$	\$ 249

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") begins with an executive level overview, which provides a general description of our company today, a synopsis of industry market trends, insight into management's perspective of the opportunities and challenges we face and our outlook for the remainder of 2012. Next, we analyze the results of our operations for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, including the trends in our business and review our liquidity and capital resources. We conclude with a discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates and a summary of recently issued accounting pronouncements. The "Company," "we," "us" and "our" refer to Weatherford International Ltd., a Swiss joint-stock corporation.

As discussed in "Note 2 — Restatement of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements," we have restated our previously issued audited consolidated financial statements for fiscal years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for each of the quarters within 2011 and 2010 and for the first quarter of 2012. Accordingly, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations have been revised for the effects of the restatement.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our restated financial statements included with this report and our financial statements and related MD&A for the year ended December 31, 2011 included in our Annual Report restated on Form 10-K/A. Our discussion includes various forward-looking statements about our markets, the demand for our products and services and our future results. These statements are based on certain assumptions we consider reasonable. For information about these assumptions, you should refer to the section entitled "Forward-Looking Statements." Overview

General

Our principal business is to provide equipment and services to the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry both on land and offshore, through our product and service line groups 1) Formation Evaluation and Well Construction and 2) Completion and Production.

- Formation Evaluation and Well Construction includes: Drilling Services, Well Construction, Integrated Drilling, Wireline and Evaluation Services, Drilling Tools and Re-entry and Fishing
- Completion and Production includes: Artificial Lift Systems, Stimulation and Chemicals, Completion Systems and Pipeline and Specialty Services

We may sell our products and services separately or may bundle them together to provide integrated solutions, up to and including integrated well construction where we are responsible for the entire process of drilling, constructing and completing a well. Our customers include both exploration and production companies and other oilfield service companies. Depending on the service line, customer and location, our contracts vary in their terms, provisions and indemnities. We earn revenues under our contracts when products and services are delivered. Typically, we provide products and services at a well site where our personnel and equipment may be located together with personnel and equipment of our customer and third parties, such as other service providers.

We conduct operations in approximately 100 countries and have service and sales locations in nearly all of the oil and natural gas producing regions in the world. Our operational performance is segmented and reviewed on a geographic basis and we report the following regions as separate, distinct reporting segments: (1) North America; (2) Latin America; (3) Europe/Sub-Sahara Africa ("SSA")/Russia; and (4) Middle East/North Africa ("MENA")/Asia Pacific.

Industry Trends

Changes in the current price and expected future prices of oil and natural gas influence the level of energy industry spending. Changes in expenditures result in an increased or decreased demand for our products and services. Rig count is an indicator of the level of spending for the exploration for and production of oil and natural gas reserves.

The following chart sets forth certain statistics that reflect historical market conditions:

	WT	'I Oil (a)	Henry Gas		American Rig Count (c)	International Rig Count (c)
March 31, 2012	\$	103.02	\$	2.13	2,574	1,189
December 31, 2011		98.83		2.99	2,481	1,188
March 31, 2011		106.72		4.39	2,282	1,166

- (a) Price per barrel as of March 31 and December 31 Source: Thomson Reuters
- (b) Price per MM/BTU as of March 31 and December 31 Source: Thomson Reuters
- (c) Average rig count for the applicable quarter Source: Baker Hughes Rig Count

Oil prices increased during the first three months of 2012, ranging from a low of \$96.36 per barrel in early February to a high of \$109.77 per barrel at the end of February. Natural gas prices decreased during the first three months of 2012 and ranged from a high of \$3.10 MM/BTU in early January to a low of \$2.13 MM/BTU at the end of March. Factors influencing oil and natural gas prices during the period include hydrocarbon inventory levels, realized and expected economic growth, realized and expected levels of hydrocarbon demand, levels of spare production capacity within the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries ("OPEC"), weather and geopolitical uncertainty.

Outlook

We believe the long-term outlook for our businesses is favorable. As decline rates accelerate and reservoir productivity complexities increase, our clients will face growing challenges securing desired rates of production growth. These challenges increase our customers' requirements for technologies that improve productivity and efficiency and increase demand for our products and services. These phenomena provide us with a positive outlook over the longer term.

The level of improvement in our businesses in 2012 will continue to depend heavily on pricing and volume increases, our control of costs and our ability to further penetrate existing markets with our younger technologies, as well as our ability to successfully introduce these technologies to new markets.

For 2012, we maintain a positive outlook with respect to increases in North American revenue and profitability. Assuming a flat rig count, we expect 2012 revenue and operating income to increase modestly compared to 2011. We believe the predominance of oil activity in Canada and the strength of oil-based activity in the United States will more than offset likely declines in natural gas related activity. As a result, our artificial lift, production optimization, formation evaluation, open hole completion and wireline product lines should show meaningful growth compared to 2011. However, in our stimulation and chemicals product lines, we anticipate comparative weakness and a correction due to low barriers to entry, rapid expansion of capacity, a migration from natural gas activity to oil activity and improvements in stimulation efficiency.

Internationally, our outlook remains positive. Latin America has a solid backlog that should result in increases in revenue and profitability driven by continuous progress in several countries. Growth in our Europe/SSA/Russia region will be driven by revenue and profitability improvements expected in Russia and also in Europe and the Caspian. Our MENA operation should show an improvement in the second half of the year due to the expected completion of certain lower margin contracts and the start of new contracts, primarily in Saudi Arabia and Kuwait; however, we expect the improvement in North Africa late in the year. We anticipate revenue and profitability growth in Asia will be driven by a strong backlog in China and Australia.

Results of Operations

The following charts contain selected financial data comparing our consolidated and segment results from operations for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011:

		Three Months Ended March 31,		
	2012 (Restated)		2011 (Restated)	
	(In millions, ex	cept pe	r share data)	
Revenues:				
North America	\$ 1,75	4 \$	1,360	
MENA/Asia Pacific	59		576	
Europe/SSA/Russia	57	1	510	
Latin America	67	1	410	
	3,59	1	2,856	
Operating Income (Loss):				
North America	35	Q	282	
MENA/Asia Pacific		2	9	
Europe/SSA/Russia		6	39	
Latin America		3	20	
Research and Development		(2)	(60)	
Corporate Expenses	`	0)	(60)	
Other Items		7)	(21)	
Callet Health	37		209	
Interest Expense, Net	(1)	2)	(112)	
Other, Net	(1	8)	(19)	
Net Income per Diluted Share	\$ 0.1	6 \$	0.04	
Depreciation and Amortization	29	9	278	

Revenues

The following chart contains the percentage of consolidated revenues by product line for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011:

	2012	2011
	570/	600/
Formation Evaluation and Well Construction	57%	60%
Completion and Production	43%	40%
	100%	100%

Consolidated revenues increased \$735 million, or 26%, in the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the first quarter of 2011. This increase outpaced the 9% increase in average rig count over the comparable period. North America revenue increased \$394 million, or 29%, in the first quarter of 2012 compared to the same quarter of the prior year. International revenues increased \$341 million, or 23%, in the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the first quarter of 2011. Our artificial lift systems, drilling services, and completions product lines were the strongest contributors to the increase over the year-ago period.

Operating Income

Consolidated operating income increased \$161 million or 77%, in the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the first quarter of 2011. Our operating segments contributed \$179 million of incremental operating income during the current quarter as compared to the same quarter of the prior year. Severance, exit and other adjustments during the first quarter of 2012 increased \$26 million as compared to the first quarter of 2011.

Other items during the three months ended March 31, 2012 include \$31 million for severance and exit costs, income tax restatement and material weakness remediation expenses of \$14 million and \$2 million in legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going investigations.

Other items during the three months ended March 31, 2011 include (1) \$11 million for severance, (2) \$9 million charge incurred in connection with the termination of corporate consulting contract and (3) \$1 million in legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going investigations.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net was flat in the first quarter of 2012 as compared to the same period of the prior year.

Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 31, 2012, we had a tax provision of \$110 million on income before taxes of \$240 million. Our tax provision for the three months ended March 31, 2012 includes \$2 million for increases in reserves for uncertain tax positions, which increased our effective tax rate for the period to 46%.

For the three months ended March 31, 2011, we had a tax provision of \$46 million on income before taxes of \$78 million. Our tax provision for the three months ended March 31, 2011 includes discrete tax benefits of \$6 million.

Segment Results

North America

North American revenues increased \$394 million, or 29%, in the first quarter of 2012, as compared to the first quarter of 2011. This increase outpaced the 13% increase in average North American rig count over the comparable period. Revenues from our well construction, artificial lift, completions and drilling services product lines were the strongest contributors to the year-over-year increase.

Operating income increased \$76 million, or 27%, in the first quarter of 2012, as compared to the first quarter of the prior year. Operating margins decreased 30 basis points to 20.4% for the first three months of 2012, compared to 20.7% for the first three months of 2011.

MENA/Asia Pacific

MENA/Asia Pacific revenues increased \$19 million, or 3%, in the first quarter of 2012, as compared to the first quarter of 2011. Our pipeline and specialty services product line was the strongest contributors to the increase in revenue.

Operating income increased \$13 million, or 144%, during the first quarter of 2012, compared to the same quarter of the prior year. These results were impacted by the recognition of project losses totaling \$11 million. Operating margins were 3.7% in the first quarter of 2012 and 1.6% in the first quarter of 2011. In 2011, political disruptions in the Middle East and North Africa and challenging weather events in Australia and China were large drivers of a year-over-year decrease. The 2012 increase in operating income is in part due to a return of less severe seasonal storms in the Asia Pacific region.

Europe/SSA/Russia

Revenues in our Europe/SSA/Russia segment increased \$61 million, or 12%, in the first quarter of 2012, compared to the same quarter of the prior year. The region realized strong performances from our completions, well construction and integrated drilling services lines in the current quarter as compared to the same period of the prior year.

Operating income increased \$27 million, or 69%, in the first quarter of 2012, as compared to the same quarter of 2011. Operating margins were 11.6% in the first quarter of 2012 and 7.6% in the first quarter of 2011. The increase in operating income and margins was due to an abatement noted in the increased fuel and transportation costs in Russia, relative to the prior year quarter and the anticipated realization of our strong backlog in integrated drilling, wireline, completion and artificial lift.

Latin America

Revenues in our Latin America segment increased \$261 million or 64%, in the first quarter of 2012, as compared to the same quarter of the prior year.

Operating income increased \$63 million, or 315%, for the three months ended March 31, 2012, over the comparable period of the prior year. Operating margins increased from 4.9% for the first quarter of 2011 to 12.4% for the first quarter of 2012. The prior year quarter's operating income was negatively impacted by a \$16 million charge due to an equity tax enacted in Colombia.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

Our sources of available liquidity include cash and cash equivalent balances, cash generated from operations, commercial paper and committed bank lines of credit. We also historically have accessed banks for short-term loans from uncommitted borrowing arrangements and the capital markets with debt, equity and convertible bond offerings. From time to time we may enter into transactions to factor accounts receivable or dispose of businesses or capital assets that are no longer core to our long-term growth strategy.

Committed Borrowing Facilities

We maintain a \$2.25 billion unsecured, revolving credit agreement (the "Credit Agreement") with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent. The Credit Agreement has a scheduled maturity date of July 13, 2016 and can be used for a combination of borrowings, support for our commercial paper program and issuances of letters of credit. This agreement requires us to maintain a debt-to-capitalization ratio of less than 60%. We are in compliance with these covenants at March 31, 2012.

The following is a recap of our availability under our committed borrowing facility at March 31, 2012 (in millions):

Facilities	\$ 2,250
Less:	
Amount drawn	_
Commercial paper	1,284
Letters of credit	82
Availability	\$ 884

On April 16, 2012, we increased the size of our commercial paper program to \$2.25 billion from \$1.5 billion. From time to time, we use the commercial paper program to issue short-term, unsecured notes. Our commercial paper issuances are supported by the Credit Agreement.

On April 4, 2012, we completed a \$1.3 billion long-term debt offering comprised of (1) \$750 million of 4.5% Senior Notes due 2022 and (2) \$550 million of 5.95% Senior Notes due 2042. The net proceeds from this offering were used to repay short-term indebtedness under our commercial paper program and for general corporate purposes.

Cash Requirements

During 2012, we anticipate our cash requirements will include interest payments on our outstanding debt, the repayment of \$273 million of senior notes due in the second quarter of 2012, working capital needs and capital expenditures. Our cash requirements may also include opportunistic business acquisitions and an indeterminate amount to settle the governmental investigations described in Note 15 to our condensed consolidated financial statements. Consistent with 2011, we anticipate funding these requirements from cash generated from operations, availability under our Credit Agreement, the issuance of commercial paper and potential proceeds from disposals of businesses or capital assets that are no longer core to our long-term growth strategy.

Capital expenditures for 2012 are projected to be between 10% and 15% of our revenues. The amounts ultimately spent will depend on a number of factors including the type of contracts we enter into, asset availability and our expectations with respect to industry activity levels in 2013. The expenditures are expected to be used primarily to support anticipated near-term growth. Capital expenditures during the three months ended March 31, 2012 were \$514 million.

Accounts Receivable Factoring

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we factored approximately \$51 million of accounts receivables under the program we entered into in 2010. We received \$47 million in proceeds and recognized a loss of less than one million on these sales. These transactions qualified for sale accounting under the accounting standards and the proceeds received through March 31, 2012 are included in operating cash flows in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. We did not factor accounts receivables during the three months ended March 31, 2011.

Derivative Instruments

Fair Value Hedges

We may use interest rate swaps to help mitigate exposures related to changes in the fair values of the associated debt. Amounts paid or received upon termination of interest rate swaps accounted for as fair value hedges represent the fair value of the agreements at the time of termination and are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt. These amounts are amortized as a reduction, in the case of gains, or as an increase, in the case of losses, of interest expense over the remaining term of the debt. As of March 31, 2012, we had net unamortized gains of \$44 million associated with interest rate swap terminations.

In July 2011, we entered into interest rate swap agreements to pay a variable interest rate and receive a fixed interest rate with an aggregate notional amount of \$300 million. These swaps were designated as fair value hedges of our 6.35% Senior Notes. These agreements are determined to be highly effective. The effects of any ineffectiveness were not material to the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations as the changes in the fair values of the interest rate swaps offset changes in the fair value of the underlying debt. The aggregate fair value of the interest rate swaps at March 31, 2012 resulted in an asset of \$14 million with a corresponding increase to Long-term Debt on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Cash Flow Hedges

In 2008, we entered into interest rate derivative instruments to hedge projected exposures to interest rates in anticipation of a debt offering. Those hedges were terminated at the time of the issuance of the debt, and the loss on these hedges is being amortized from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) into interest expense over the remaining term of the debt. As of March 31, 2012, we had net unamortized losses of \$12 million associated with our cash flow hedge terminations.

Other Derivative Instruments

As of March 31, 2012, we had foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts aggregating to \$756 million. These contracts were entered into to hedge exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies. The total estimated fair value of these contracts and amounts receivable or owed associated with closed contracts resulted in a net liability of approximately \$5 million. These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other, Net in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the Canadian dollar. At March 31, 2012, we had notional amounts outstanding of \$168 million. The total estimated fair value of these contracts at March 31, 2012, resulted in a liability of \$33 million. These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other, Net in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

A Swiss joint-stock company named Weatherford International Ltd. is the ultimate parent ("Weatherford Switzerland") of the Weatherford group and guarantees the obligations of Weatherford International Ltd., which is incorporated in Bermuda ("Weatherford Bermuda") and Weatherford International, Inc., which is incorporated in Delaware ("Weatherford Delaware") noted below.

The following obligations of Weatherford Delaware were guaranteed by Weatherford Bermuda at March 31, 2012: (1) the 5.95% Senior Notes, (2) the 6.35% Senior Notes and (3) the 6.80% Senior Notes.

The following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware at March 31, 2012: (1) the revolving credit facility, (2) the 4.95% Senior Notes, (3) the 5.50% Senior Notes, (4) the 6.50% Senior Notes, (5) the 5.15% Senior Notes, (6) the 6.00% Senior Notes, (7) the 7.00% Senior Notes, (8) the 9.625% Senior Notes, (9) the 9.875% Senior Notes, (10) the 5.125% Senior Notes and (11) the 6.75% Senior Notes.

Letters of Credit

We execute letters of credit and bid and performance bonds in the normal course of business. As of March 31, 2012, we had \$692 million of letters of credit and bid and performance bonds outstanding, consisting of \$415 million outstanding under various uncommitted credit facilities, \$82 million letters of credit outstanding under our committed facilities and \$195 million of performance bonds issued by financial sureties against an indemnification from us. These obligations could be called by the beneficiaries should we breach certain contractual or performance obligations. If the beneficiaries were to call the letters of credit under our committed facilities, our available liquidity would be reduced by the amount called.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements. We prepare these financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. As such, we are required to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. We base our estimates on historical experience, available information and various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates; however, actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. There have been no material changes or developments in our evaluation of the accounting estimates and the underlying assumptions or methodologies that we believe to be Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates as disclosed in our Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 15 to our condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

Risk Factors

An investment in our registered shares involves various risks. When considering an investment in our Company, you should consider carefully all of the risk factors described in our most recent Annual Report as restated on Form 10-K/A, under the heading "Item 1A. *Risk Factors"* as well as the information below and other information included and incorporated by reference in this report.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report, as well as other filings made by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), and our releases issued to the public contain various statements relating to future financial performance and results, including certain projections and business trends and other statements that are not historical facts. We believe these statements constitute "Forward-Looking Statements" as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements generally are identified by the words "believe," "project," "expect," "anticipate," "estimate," "intend," "strategy," "plan," "may," "should," "could," "will," "would," "will be," "will continue," "will likely result," and similar expressions, although not all forward-looking statements contain these identifying words.

From time to time, we update the various factors we consider in making our forward-looking statements and the assumptions we use in those statements. However, we undertake no obligation to correct, update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise, except to the extent required under federal securities laws. The following sets forth various assumptions we use in our forward-looking statements, as well as risks and uncertainties relating to those statements. Certain of the risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to be materially different from projected results contained in forward-looking statements in this report and in our other disclosures. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those described below under Item 1A – Risk Factors and the following:

• Global political, economic and market conditions could affect projected results. Our operating results and the forward-looking information we provide are based on our current assumptions about oil and natural gas supply and demand, oil and natural gas prices, rig count and other market trends. Our assumptions on these matters are in turn based on currently available information, which is subject to change. The oil and natural gas industry is extremely volatile and subject to change based on political and economic factors outside our control. A weakened global economic climate generally results in lower demand and lower prices for oil and natural gas, which reduces drilling and production activity, which in turn results in lower revenues and income for us. Worldwide drilling activity and global demand for oil and natural gas may also be affected by changes in governmental policies and sovereign debt, laws and regulations related to environmental or energy security matters, including those addressing alternative energy sources and the risks of global climate change. Worldwide economic conditions, and the related demand for oil and natural gas, may in future periods be significantly weaker than we have assumed.

- We may be unable to realize our expected revenues from current and future contracts. Our customers, many of whom are national oil companies, often have significant bargaining leverage over us and may elect to cancel or revoke contracts, not renew contracts, modify the scope of contracts or delay contracts, in some cases preventing us from realizing expected revenues and/or profits. The 2011 conflict in Libya and the continued security problems have slowed, and may continue to slow or ultimately prevent, collection of certain accounts receivable generated in Libya. Our projections assume that our customers will honor the contracts we have been awarded and that those contracts and the business that we believe is otherwise substantially firm will result in anticipated revenues in the periods for which they are scheduled.
- Currency fluctuations could have a material adverse financial impact on our business. A material change in currency rates in our markets could affect our future results as well as affect the carrying values of our assets. Any hedging activity in which we engage may not adequately protect us from these fluctuations. The terms and size of our hedges are based on the information available to us at the time we enter into them. As a result, our hedging activity may not entirely off set our exposures. World currencies have been subject to significant volatility. Due to the volatility we may be unable to enter into foreign currency contracts at a reasonable cost. As we are not able to predict changes in currency valuations, our forward-looking statements assume no material impact from future changes in currency exchange rates.
- Our ability to manage our workforce could affect our projected results. We employ tens of thousands of people on six continents in a multitude of legal jurisdictions with differing labor laws. Our need for human resources varies from time to time and place to place, corresponding largely to global drilling and production activity. In a climate of decreasing demand, we are faced with managing our workforce levels to control costs without impairing our ability to provide services to our customers and in compliance with various local laws. Conversely, in a climate of increasing demand, we are faced with the challenge of recruiting and retaining a skilled workforce at a reasonable cost. Our forward-looking statements assume we will be able to manage, cost effectively, our workforce in all jurisdictions in which we operate in both up cycles and down cycles.
- Increases in the prices and availability of our raw materials could affect our results of operations. We use large amounts of raw materials (including steel and other metals, chemicals, plastics, polymers and energy inputs) for manufacturing our products and some of our fixed assets. The price of these raw materials has a significant impact on our cost of producing products for sale or constructing fixed assets used in our business. We have assumed that the prices of our raw materials will remain within a manageable range and will be readily available. If we are unable to obtain necessary raw materials or if we are unable to minimize the impact of increased raw material costs or to realize the benefit of cost decreases in a timely fashion through our supply chain initiatives or pricing, our margins and results of operations could be adversely affected.
- Our ability to manage our supply chain and business processes could affect our projected results. We have undertaken efforts to improve our supply chain, invoicing and collection processes and procedures. These undertakings include costs, which we expect will result in long-term benefits for our business processes. Our forward-looking statements assume we will realize the benefits of these efforts.
- Rapid increases in demand for our products may challenge our supply chain. Many of our products have months-long manufacturing lead times, and we must maintain appropriate levels of manufacturing facilities and trained personnel to ensure the quality and safety of our supply chain. During periods of rapidly increasing or unexpected demand, we may not be able to manufacture sufficient quantities of certain products to meet our customers' demands, which could result in lost opportunities and reputational damage. Conversely, during periods of rapidly decreasing or unexpected declines in demand, we may have committed resources to manufacturing resulting in excess inventories, or we may have underutilized manufacturing capacity, which could adversely affect our financial condition. Our forward-looking statements assume we will be able to forecast and manage our supply chain needs and inventory levels efficiently.
- Our long-term growth depends upon technological innovation and commercialization. Our ability to deliver our long-term growth strategy depends in part on the commercialization of new technology. A central aspect of our growth strategy is to improve our products and services through innovation, to obtain technologically advanced products through internal research and development and/or acquisitions, to protect proprietary technology from unauthorized use and to expand the markets for new technology by leveraging our worldwide infrastructure. Our success will depend on our ability to commercialize the technology that we have acquired and demonstrate the enhanced value our technology brings to our customers' operations. Our major technological advances include, but are not limited to, those related to controlled pressure drilling and testing systems, expandable solid tubulars, expandable sand screens and intelligent well completion. Our forward-looking statements have assumed successful commercialization of, and above-average growth from, our new products and services, as well as legal protection of our intellectual property rights.

- Nonrealization of expected benefits from our redomestication could affect our projected results. We operate through our various subsidiaries in numerous countries throughout the world including the United States. During the first quarter of 2009, we completed a transaction in which our former Bermuda incorporated parent company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford Switzerland, a Swiss joint-stock corporation, and holders of common shares of the Bermuda company received one registered share of Weatherford Switzerland in exchange for each common share that they held. Consequently, we are or may become subject to changes in tax laws, treaties or regulations or the interpretation or enforcement thereof in the U.S., Bermuda, Switzerland or any other jurisdictions in which we or any of our subsidiaries operate or are resident. Our income tax expense is based upon our interpretation of the tax laws in effect in various countries at the time that the expense was incurred. If the U.S. Internal Revenue Service or other taxing authorities do not agree with our assessment of the effects of such laws, treaties and regulations, this could have a material adverse effect on us, including the imposition of a higher effective tax rate on our worldwide earnings or a reclassification of the tax impact of our significant corporate restructuring transactions. In addition, our realization of expected tax benefits is based upon the assumption that we take successful planning steps and that we maintain and execute adequate processes to support our planning activities. If we fail to do so, we may not achieve the expected benefits.
- Nonrealization of expected benefits from our acquisitions or business dispositions could affect our projected results. We expect to gain certain business, financial and strategic advantages as a result of business acquisitions we undertake, including synergies and operating efficiencies. Our forward-looking statements assume that we will successfully integrate our business acquisitions and realize the benefits of those acquisitions. Further, we may from time to time undertake to dispose of businesses or capital assets that are no longer core to our long-term growth strategy and the disposition of which may improve our capital structure. Our forward-looking statements assume that if we decide to dispose of a business or asset we will find a buyer willing to pay a price we deem favorable to Weatherford and that we will successfully dispose of the business or asset. Our inability to complete dispositions timely and at attractive prices may impair our ability to improve our capital structure as rapidly as our forward-looking statements may indicate.
- A downturn in our industry could affect the carrying value of our goodwill. As of March 31, 2012, we had approximately \$4.4 billion of goodwill. Our estimates of the value of our goodwill could be reduced in the future as a result of various factors, including market factors, some of which are beyond our control. Our forward-looking statements do not assume any future goodwill impairment. Any reduction in the fair value of our businesses may result in an impairment charge and therefore adversely affect our results.
- Adverse weather conditions in certain regions could adversely affect our operations. From time to time, hurricanes, typhoons and severe weather impact our operations in the Gulf of Mexico and Southeast Asia. These storms and associated threats reduce the number of days on which we and our customers operate which results in lower revenues than we otherwise would have achieved. Our Canadian operations, particularly in the second quarter of each year, may vary greatly depending on the timing of "break-up", or the spring thaw, which annually results in a period in which conditions are not conducive to operations. Similarly, unfavorable weather in Russia, Caspian, China, Mexico, Australia and in the North Sea, as well as exceedingly cold winters in other areas of the world, could reduce our operations and revenues from these areas during the relevant period. Our forward-looking statements assume weather patterns in our primary areas of operations will be conducive to our operations.

- U.S. Government and internal investigations could affect our results of operations. We are currently involved in government and internal investigations involving our operations. We are in negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these matters, but we cannot yet anticipate the timing, outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of these investigations, financial or otherwise. The governmental agencies involved in these investigations have a broad range of civil and criminal penalties they may seek to impose against corporations and individuals for violations of trade sanction laws, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other federal statutes including, but not limited to, injunctive relief, disgorgement, fines, penalties and modifications to business practices and compliance programs. In recent years, these agencies and authorities have entered into agreements with, and obtained a range of penalties against, several corporations and individuals in similar investigations, under which civil and criminal penalties were imposed, including in some cases fines and other penalties and sanctions in the tens and hundreds of millions of dollars. These agencies likely will seek to impose penalties of some amount against us for past conduct in several countries, but the ultimate amount of any penalties we may pay currently cannot be reasonably estimated. Under trade sanction laws, the U.S. Department of Justice may also seek to impose modifications to business practices, including immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other limitations that decrease our business, and modifications to compliance programs, which may increase compliance costs. Any injunctive relief, disgorgement, fines, penalties, sanctions or imposed modifications to business practices and the on-going costs resulting from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations. Through March 31, 2012, we have incurred \$43 million for costs in connection with our exit from certain sanctioned countries and incurred \$125 million for legal and professional fees in connection with complying with and conducting these on-going investigations. This amount excludes the costs we have incurred to augment and improve our compliance function. We may have additional charges related to these matters in future periods, which costs may include labor claims, contractual claims, penalties assessed by customers, and costs, fines, taxes and penalties assessed by local governments, but we cannot quantify those charges or be certain of the timing of them. In addition, the SEC and Department of Justice are investigating the circumstances surrounding the material weakness in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting for income taxes that was disclosed on Forms 12b-25 and 8-K on March 1, 2011 and February 21, 2012, respectively, and the related restatements of our historical financial statements. We are cooperating with the government investigations.
- Failure in the future to ensure ongoing compliance with certain laws could affect our results of operations. In 2009, we substantially augmented our compliance infrastructure with increased staff and more rigorous policies, procedures and training of our employees regarding compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws, trade sanctions laws and import/export laws. As part of this effort, we now undertake audits of our compliance performance in various countries. Our forward-looking statements assume that our compliance efforts will be successful and that we will comply with our internal policies and applicable laws regarding these issues. Our failure to do so could result in additional enforcement action in the future, the results of which could be material and adverse to us.
- Political disturbances, war, or terrorist attacks and changes in global trade policies could adversely impact our operations. We operate in over 100 countries, and as such are at risk of various types of political activities, including acts of insurrection, war, terrorism, nationalization of assets and changes in trade policies. We have assumed there will be no material political disturbances or terrorist attacks and there will be no material changes in global trade policies that affect our business. In early 2011, our operations in Libya, Algeria, Tunisia, Egypt, and to a lesser extent Yemen and Bahrain were disrupted by political revolutions and uprisings in these countries. Conflict in Libya and lesser political disturbances elsewhere in the Middle East and North Africa regions are ongoing, and our operations in Libya have not resumed. During 2011, these six countries accounted for approximately 3% of our global revenue, down from 6% in 2010. We take steps to secure our personnel and assets in affected areas and resume or continue operations where it is safe for us to do so; our forward-looking statements assume we will do so successfully. In Libya, we evacuated all of our non-Libyan employees and their families shortly after hostilities commenced and we have assumed our operations in Libya will not resume in the remainder of 2012. Given our evacuation from the country, it may be difficult, if not impossible, for us to safeguard and recover all of our operating assets; our ability to do so will depend on the local turn of events. At March 31, 2012, we had inventory and property, plant and equipment in Libya with a carrying value of \$119 million, as well as \$4 million of accounts receivable. We risk loss of assets in any location where hostilities arise and persist. In these areas we also may not be able to perform the work we are contracted to perform, which could lead to forfeiture of performance bonds. We have assumed that cessation of business activities in other parts of the Middle East and North Africa regions due to political turmoil will be short-lived, that the negative impact on our business will not be material, and that the region will not experience further disruptive political revolution in the near term. However, if political violence were to curtail our activities in other countries in the region from which we derive greater business, such as Saudi Arabia, Iraq and Algeria, and particularly if political activities were to result in prolonged violence or conflict, we may fail to achieve the results reflected in our forward-looking statements.

- The material weakness in accounting for income taxes could have an adverse effect on our share price or our debt ratings and our ability to report our financial information timely and accurately. If we are unable to effectively remediate this material weakness in a timely manner, we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which could have an adverse effect on our share price and could subject us to additional potentially costly shareholder litigation or government inquiries. Further, if we are unable to effectively remediate this material weakness in a timely manner, our failure to do so could limit our ability to obtain financing, harm our reputation or result in debt rating agencies adjusting the ratings on our debt downward. Our forward-looking statements assume we will be able to remediate the material weakness in a timely manner and will maintain an effective internal control environment in the future.
- Recent turmoil in the credit markets may reduce our access to capital or reduce the availability of financial risk-mitigation tools. The worldwide credit markets experienced turmoil and uncertainty from mid-2008 through most of 2009, and certain markets remained challenging in parts of 2010. In 2011, several important financial and banking institutions were perceived to be overexposed to credit risks with respect to certain sovereign debt. We do not have access to complete information about the exposures of any particular institution, and we cannot predict what systemic risks may exist to a failure of any sovereign debtor, major financial institution or bank. Our forward-looking statements assume that the financial institutions that have committed to extend us credit will honor their commitments under our credit facilities and that capital markets will remain orderly. If one or more of those institutions becomes unwilling or unable to honor its commitments, our access to liquidity could be impaired and our cost of capital to fund growth could increase. We use interest rate and foreign exchange swap transactions with financial institutions to mitigate certain interest rate and foreign exchange risks associated with our capital structure and our business. Our forward-looking statements assume that those tools will continue to be available to us at prices we deem reasonable. However, the failure of any counterparty to honor a swap agreement could reduce the availability of these financial risk mitigation tools or could result in the loss of expected financial benefits.

Finally, our future results will depend upon various other risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those detailed in our other filings with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. For additional information regarding risks and uncertainties, see our other filings with the SEC. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934 are made available free of charge on our internet web site www.weatherford.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we have electronically filed the material with, or furnished it to, the SEC.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are currently exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency and changes in interest rates. From time to time, we may enter into derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk. A discussion of our market risk exposure in these financial instruments follows.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We operate in virtually every oil and natural gas exploration and production region in the world. In some parts of the world, such as the Middle East and Southeast Asia, the currency of our primary economic environment is the U.S. dollar. We use this as our functional currency. In other parts of the world, we conduct our business in currencies other than the U.S. dollar and the functional currency is the applicable local currency. In those countries in which we operate in the local currency, the effects of foreign currency fluctuations are largely mitigated because local expenses of such foreign operations are also generally denominated in the same currency.

In January 2010, the Venezuelan government announced its intention to devalue its currency and move to a two tier exchange structure. The official exchange rate moved from 2.15 to 2.60 for essential goods and from 2.15 to 4.30 for non-essential goods and services. Our Venezuelan entities maintain the U.S. dollar as their functional currency. In connection with this devaluation, we incurred a charge of \$64 million for the remeasurement of our net monetary assets denominated in Venezuelan bolivars at the date of the devaluation, which was not tax deductible in Venezuela. We also recorded a \$24 million tax benefit for local Venezuelan income tax purposes related to our net U.S. dollar-denominated monetary liability position in the country. Effective January 1, 2011, the Venezuelan government again modified the fixed rate of exchange, eliminating the two tier structure and establishing 4.30 as the official exchange rate for all goods and services. This modification did not have a material impact to our financial position or results of operations. As of March 31, 2012, we had a net monetary asset position denominated in Venezuelan bolivars of approximately \$229 million comprised primarily of cash and accounts receivable. We are continuing to explore opportunities to reduce our exposure but should another devaluation occur in the future, we may be required to take further charges related to the remeasurement of our net monetary asset position. For example, if the Venezuela bolivar devalued by an additional 10% in the future, we would record a devaluation charge of approximately \$23 million.

Assets and liabilities of entities for which the functional currency is the local currency are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, resulting in translation adjustments that are reflected in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the shareholders' equity section on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. A portion of our net assets are impacted by changes in foreign currencies in relation to the U.S. dollar. We recorded a \$181 million adjustment to increase our equity account for the three months ended March 31, 2012, to reflect the change U.S. dollar against various foreign currencies.

As of March 31, 2012, we had foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts aggregating to \$756 million, which were entered into to hedge exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies. The total estimated fair value of these contracts at March 31, 2012, resulted in a net liability of approximately \$5 million. These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges, and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings.

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the Canadian dollar. At March 31, 2012, we had notional amounts outstanding of \$168 million. The total estimated fair value of these contracts at March 31, 2012, resulted in a liability of \$33 million. These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings.

Interest Rates

We are subject to interest rate risk on our long-term fixed-interest rate debt and variable-interest rate borrowings. Variable rate debt, where the interest rate fluctuates periodically, exposes us to short-term changes in market interest rates. Fixed rate debt, where the interest rate is fixed over the life of the instrument, exposes us to changes in market interest rates reflected in the fair value of the debt and to the risk that we may need to refinance maturing debt with new debt at a higher rate. All other things being equal, the fair value of our fixed rate debt will increase or decrease as interest rates change.

Our long-term borrowings that were outstanding at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, subject to interest rate risk consist of the following:

	1	March 31, 2012		December 31, 2011			
	Carry Amo	_		Fair Value (In mil	Carrying Amount		Fair Value
				(In mii	iions)		
5.95% Senior Notes due 2012	\$	273	\$	275	\$ 273	\$	279
5.15% Senior Notes due 2013		296		304	297		306
4.95% Senior Notes due 2013		251		263	252		264
5.50% Senior Notes due 2016		356		388	357		386
6.35% Senior Notes due 2017		613		695	613		674
6.00% Senior Notes due 2018		498		565	498		563
9.625% Senior Notes due 2019		1,029		1,310	1,030		1,323
5.125% Senior Notes due 2020		799		860	799		861
6.50% Senior Notes due 2036		596		666	596		680
6.80% Senior Notes due 2037		298		342	298		338
7.00% Senior Notes due 2038		499		555	498		556
9.875% Senior Notes due 2039		247		350	247		350
6.75% Senior Notes due 2040		598		676	598		690

On April 16, 2012, we increased the size of our commercial paper program to \$2.25 billion from \$1.5 billion. From time to time, we use the commercial paper program to issue short-term, unsecured notes. Our commercial paper issuances are supported by the Credit Agreement.

We have various other long-term debt instruments of \$241 million at March 31, 2012, but believe the impact of changes in interest rates in the near term will not be material to these instruments. The carrying value of our short-term borrowings of \$1.9 billion at March 31, 2012 approximates their fair value.

As it relates to our variable rate debt, if market interest rates average 1% more for the remainder of 2012 than the rates as of March 31, 2012, interest expense for the remainder of 2012 would increase by less than \$10 million. This amount was determined by calculating the effect of the hypothetical interest rate on our variable rate debt. For purposes of this sensitivity analysis, we assumed no changes in our capital structure.

Interest Rate Swaps and Derivatives

We manage our debt portfolio to achieve an overall desired position of fixed and floating rates and may employ interest rate swaps as a tool to achieve that goal. The major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the interest rates affecting the fair value of such instruments, potential increases in interest expense due to market increases in floating interest rates and the creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions. The counterparties to our interest rate swaps are multinational commercial banks. In light of events in the global credit markets and the potential impact of these events on the liquidity of the banking industry, we continue to monitor the creditworthiness of our counterparties.

Amounts paid or received upon termination of the interest rate swaps represent the fair value of the agreements at the time of termination and are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt. These amounts are amortized as a reduction, in the case of gains, or an increase, in the case of losses, to interest expense over the remaining term of the debt.

In July 2011, we entered into interest rate swap agreements to pay a variable interest rate and receive a fixed interest rate with an aggregate notional amount of \$300 million. These swaps were designated as fair value hedges of our 6.35% Senior Notes. These agreements are determined to be highly effective. The effects of any ineffectiveness were not material to the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations as the changes in the fair values of the interest rate swaps offset changes in the fair value of the underlying debt. The aggregate fair value of the interest rate swaps at March 31, 2012 resulted in an asset of \$14 million with a corresponding increase to Long-term Debt on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Income Tax Material Weakness Previously Disclosed

As disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A and Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, we previously identified a material weakness in our internal controls over the accounting for income taxes relating to current taxes payable, deferred tax assets and liabilities, reserves for uncertain tax positions, and current and deferred tax expense. This material weakness resulted in the restatement of our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K for both 2011 and 2010. As further disclosed, we took steps during 2011 to remediate this material weakness, including:

- Engaged third-party tax advisors and consultants to assist with enhancing internal controls over financial reporting for income taxes and developing and implementing a remediation plan;
- Revised the process for the quarterly and annual tax provisions including additional resources focused on the review and oversight of the tax accounts, reserves for uncertain tax positions and preparation of the income tax provision;
- Began recruitment of various positions within the tax and financial reporting departments and completed the hiring of several newly created positions by the end of 2011:
- Completed the review and validation of the current and deferred tax balance sheet accounts at significant locations; and
- Provided income tax accounting training to tax and financial personnel within each region.

Although we had designed and implemented certain new internal controls in an effort to remediate the material weakness, we continued to conclude that the material weakness was not remediated as of December 31, 2011 because our processes, procedures, controls and oversight over the income tax process were not effective to ensure that amounts related to current taxes payable, deferred tax assets and liabilities, reserves for uncertain tax positions, current and deferred income tax expense and the related footnote disclosures were accurate.

During 2012, in connection with the preparation of our first and second quarter financial statements and our ongoing income tax remediation activities, we identified additional income tax errors related to prior years. Due to the continued accumulation of these errors, the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors concluded, on July 24, 2012, that investors should no longer rely upon our previously issued financial statements. Management determined that we would delay filing restated financial statements until significant procedures and reviews of our accounting for income taxes were performed. During the third and fourth quarters of 2012, we performed additional procedures to restate our consolidated financial statements and ensure they have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. These procedures included the validation of all our income tax accounts and focused on reconciliations of current taxes payable and deferred tax balances with the tax bases of assets and liabilities in all jurisdictions, expanded review of uncertain tax positions in all jurisdictions with an additional focus on transfer pricing activities and a further review of our accounting for withholding taxes. To ensure the appropriateness and completeness of our accounting for uncertain tax positions, we performed (1) a validation of all previously identified uncertain tax positions and related measurement amounts and (2) a completeness assessment from several processes, including surveys completed by in-country and regional tax and accounting personnel, review of the status and pending issues in open tax audits, and consideration of findings from all other validation and completeness procedures performed in connection with the restatement. As a result of these additional procedures, we identified additional errors across multiple jurisdictions that resulted in further restatement of our previously reported financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and our condensed consolidate

As of the filing date of this Amendment No. 1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A, the material weakness in our internal controls over the accounting for income taxes has not been remediated.

Remediation Plan

We believe that the additional adjustments to prior period income taxes are a result of additional procedures and improvements the Company implemented during 2012 to existing procedures or procedures implemented in 2011. These procedures are part of our efforts to remediate the material weakness and included enhanced reviews and validation of potential uncertain tax positions reported by internal personnel, additional training and communication of potential tax exposures, enhanced procedures related to tax returns filed during 2012 to identify differences in amounts accrued, enhancements to the quarterly tax provision process and implementation of technology solutions to eliminate manual processes. In an effort to fully remediate the material weakness, the Company plans to continue the implementation of its remediation plan by undertaking the following:

- Ongoing evaluation and continued enhancement of tax department personnel and organizational structure including the use of third-party tax advisors and
 consultants to both assist with enhancing internal controls over financial reporting and augment our existing tax staff until new appropriately qualified
 employees are hired to ensure effective preparation and review of the income tax provision, account reconciliations and analyses:
- Timley preparation of tax basis balance sheets and reconciliations of the tax accounts to enable more timely detection of potential errors;
- Ongoing analysis of uncertain tax positions in all jurisdictions, leveraging the extensive work performed by the Company in connection with the current restatement into a routine process for identifying and assessing uncertain tax positions on a timely basis;
- Continued evaluation of the information technology infrastructure supporting our income tax process and implementation of additional technology solutions to further eliminate manual processes and provide long-term sustainability of the process improvements; and
- Continued delivery of income tax accounting training for tax and financial accounting personnel.

Material Weakness Related to Percentage of Completion Contract in Iraq

We also identified a material weakness in our internal controls related to a long-term early production facility construction contract in Iraq accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method. We concluded that the Company's processes, procedures and internal controls were not effective to ensure that amounts related to the revenue and costs associated with this contract were accounted for in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Specifically, we determined that there was: (i) a lack of internal controls over the accounting for claims; and (ii) a failure of internal controls over monitoring the contract scope of work and approval of all estimates related to project change orders. As a result of these control deficiencies, during the three months ended March 31, 2012, we included in our revenue estimates claims and unapproved change orders for the recovery of cost overruns that did not meet the recognition criteria for including claims in revenue estimates. In addition, we did not include in our revenue estimates liquidated damages that we are contractually obligated to pay as a result of delays in the expected completion of the project. With the removal of these amounts from estimated revenues, the estimated costs to be incurred under the contract exceed estimated revenue to be earned under contract, and therefore the anticipated loss on the contract as of March 31, 2012 should have been recorded in full during the three months ended March 31, 2012. We have restated our financial statements to correct for these errors.

Remediation Plan

The Company implemented the following additional controls and procedures over percentage-of-completion accounting during the third and fourth quarter of 2012 to remediate the material weakness:

- Documentary evidence and multiple reviews required for change orders;
- Third-party legal opinions required to support the inclusion of claims in revenue estimates;
- Contract summary and technical accounting review of contracts; and
- Training on an annual basis for all locations using percentage-of-completion accounting.

These new controls and procedures will be taken into account in our annual internal control assessment as of December 31, 2012.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

At the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act")). Based upon that evaluation and the evaluation of the identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, our CEO and CFO have concluded our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) were not effective to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in the reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms and that information relating to us (including our consolidated subsidiaries) required to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to management, including the CEO and CFO, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, identified no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2012, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting other than the changes resulting from the income tax remediation activities described above.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 14 to our condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes during the quarter ended March 31, 2012 to the risk factors set forth in Part I, Item 1A in our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY IN SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Under our restricted share plan, employees may elect to have us withhold registered shares to satisfy minimum statutory federal, state and local tax withholding obligations arising on the vesting of restricted stock awards and exercise of options. When we withhold these shares, we are required to remit to the appropriate taxing authorities the market price of the shares withheld, which could be deemed a purchase of shares by us on the date of withholding. During the quarter ended March 31, 2012, we withheld shares to satisfy these tax withholding obligations as follows:

Period	No. of Shares	Average Price
January 1 – January 31, 2012	197,384	\$ 15.23
February 1 – February 28, 2012	145,015	17.16
March 1 – March 31, 2012	186,332	16.70

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number	Description
4.1	Form of Fifth Supplemental Indenture, to be dated April 4, 2012, among Weatherford International Ltd., a Bermuda exempted company, Weatherford International Ltd., a Swiss joint-stock corporation, Weatherford International, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (File 1-34258) filed April 4, 2012).
4.2	Form of global note for 4.50% Senior Notes due 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (File 1-34258) filed April 4, 2012).
4.3	Form of global note for 5.95% Senior Notes due 2042 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (File 1-34258) filed April 4, 2012).
4.4	Form of guarantee notation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (File 1-34258) filed April 4, 2012).
*31.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
*31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
**32.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
**32.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
**101	The following materials from Weatherford International Ltd.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (1) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (2) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, (3) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (4) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and (5) related notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

^{*} Filed with this Form 10-Q/A
** Furnished with this Form 10-Q/A

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Weatherford International Ltd.

By: /s/ Bernard J. Duroc-Danner
Bernard J. Duroc-Danner
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ John H. Briscoe John H. Briscoe Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: December 17, 2012

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

- I, Bernard J. Duroc-Danner, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-O/A of Weatherford International Ltd.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 15(f) and 15d 15 (f)) for the registrant and have:
- a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
- b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
- c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
- a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 17, 2012

/s/ Bernard J. Duroc-Danner Bernard J. Duroc-Danner Chief Executive Officer

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

- I, John H. Briscoe, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q/A of Weatherford International Ltd.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 15(f) and 15d 15 (f)) for the registrant and have:
- a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
- b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
- c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
- a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 17, 2012

/s/ John H. Briscoe John H. Briscoe

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A of Weatherford International Ltd. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Bernard J. Duroc-Danner, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Bernard J. Duroc-Danner

Name: Bernard J. Duroc-Danner Title: Chief Executive Officer Date: December 17, 2012

A signed original of this written statement has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The certification the registrant furnishes in this exhibit is not deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that Section. Registration Statements or other documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission shall not incorporate this exhibit by reference, except as otherwise expressly stated in such filing.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A of Weatherford International Ltd. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, John H. Briscoe, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ John H. Briscoe

Name: John H. Briscoe

e: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: December 17, 2012

A signed original of this written statement has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The certification the registrant furnishes in this exhibit is not deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that Section. Registration Statements or other documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission shall not incorporate this exhibit by reference, except as otherwise expressly stated in such filing.